
Committee Agenda  
 

 

1 

 

 
AREA PLANNING SUBCOMMITTEE SOUTH 
Wednesday, 2nd November, 2011 
 
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex 

IG10 3JA 
  
Room: Dining Hall 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Gary Woodhall   (The Office of the Chief Executive) 
Tel: 01992 564470   Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Hart (Chairman), Ms S Watson (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
R Barrett, K Chana, Mrs T Cochrane, R Cohen, D Dodeja, C Finn, Ms J Hart, J Knapman, 
L Leonard, A Lion, J Markham, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, Mrs P Richardson, B Sandler, 
P Spencer, Mrs J Sutcliffe, H Ulkun, Mrs L Wagland and D Wixley 
 
 
 

 
A PLAN SHOWING THE LOCATION OF RODING VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL IS 

ATTACHED TO THIS AGENDA. A BRIEFING WILL BE HELD FOR THE CHAIRMAN, 
VICE-CHAIRMAN AND GROUP SPOKESPERSONS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE, AT  

6.30 P.M. PRIOR TO THE MEETING 
 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 2 November 2011 
 

2 

wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast;  
 
2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and  
 
3. the Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be filmed live for 
subsequent uploading to the Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the public seating area it is possible that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast although Officers will try and avoid this. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you have any concerns 
about this you should speak to the Webcasting Officer.” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 4. MINUTES  (Pages 11 - 18) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 2 November 2011 
 

3 

 7. CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER EPF/25/11 - 7 ARDMORE 
LANE, BUCKHURST HILL  (Pages 19 - 20) 

 
  (Director of Planning & Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 

 
 8. NON CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER - EPF/10/11 

HAZELWOOD, LOUGHTON  (Pages 21 - 22) 
 

  (Director of Planning & Economic Development) To consider the attached report. 
 

 9. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 23 - 92) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 10. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 11. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 
Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 

Paragraph Number 
Nil Nil Nil 

 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 2 November 2011 
 

4 

(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 
completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



Area Plans Subcommittee South – Location Plan

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Area Planning Subcommittee South  2011-12 
Members of the Committee: 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

 

Cllr James 
Hart 

Cllr Dodeja 

Cllr Angold-
Stephens 

Cllr Barrett 

Cllr Lion Cllr 
Markham 

Cllr 
Mohindra 

Cllr Pond 

Cllr 
Spencer 

Cllr 
Sutcliffe 

Cllr 
Wagland 

Cllr 
Richardson 

Cllr Cohen Cllr Finn Cllr Jennie 
Hart 

Cllr 
Knapman 

Cllr Watson Cllr Chana 

Cllr Ulkun 

Cllr 
Cochrane 

Cllr Leonard 

Cllr 
Sandler 

Cllr Wixley 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee 

South 
Date: 5 October 2011  

    
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 

Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA 
Time: 7.30  - 8.50 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

J Hart (Chairman), Ms S Watson (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
R Barrett, K Chana, Mrs T Cochrane, R Cohen, D Dodeja, C Finn, Ms J Hart, 
J Knapman, L Leonard, J Markham, Mrs C Pond, B Sandler, P Spencer, 
H Ulkun, Mrs L Wagland and D Wixley 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: A Lion, G Mohindra, Mrs P Richardson and Mrs J Sutcliffe 
  
Officers 
Present: 

S Solon (Principal Planning Officer), C Neilan (Landscape Officer & 
Arboriculturist) and R Perrin (Democratic Services Assistant) 
 

  
 

31. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 7 
September 2011 be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record. 

 
32. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(a)  Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors B Sandler, J 
Knapman, K Chana and Mrs L Wagland declared a personal interest in the following 
items of the agenda by virtue of being members of Chigwell Parish Council. The 
Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and they would stay 
in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/1334/11 1 Glenside, Chigwell; 
• EPF/1221/11  7 Great Oaks, Chigwell; and 
• EPF/1563/11  Hedgeside, 132 High Road, Chigwell. 

 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Wixley 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of being a 
Tree Warden. The Councillor had determined that his interest was not prejudicial and 
he would stay in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon: 
 

• EPF/1334/11 1 Glenside, Chigwell. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



Area Planning Subcommittee South  5 October 2011 

2 

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors L Leonard, R 
Cohen, D Wixley, Ms J Hart, Mrs T Cochrane, Mrs C Pond, J Markham, C Finn and K 
Angold-Stephens declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by 
virtue of being members of Loughton Residents Association. The Councillors had 
determined that their interest was not prejudicial and they would stay in the meeting 
for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/1633/11  182 Roding Road, Loughton. 
 
(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors D Wixley, 
Mrs C Pond and K Angold-Stephens declared a personal interest in the following 
item of the agenda by virtue of being members of Loughton Town Council. The 
Councillors had determined that their interest was not prejudicial and they would stay 
in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/1633/11  182 Roding Road, Loughton. 
 

33. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.  
 

34. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the planning applications numbered 1 – 4 be determined as set out in 

the attached schedule to these minutes. 
 

35. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 12



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1334/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 1 Glenside 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5RE 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/17/09 
T10 (T1 on plan) - Oak - Fell 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=529254 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The work authorised by this consent shall be carried out under the direct supervision 
of the Local Planning Authority, who shall receive in writing, 5 working days notice of 
such works. 
 

2 All work authorised by this consent shall be undertaken in a manner consistent with 
British Standard 3998 (2010) (or with any similar replacement Standard). 
 

3 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

 
 

Minute Item 34

Page 3Page 13



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1221/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 7 Great Oaks 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5ES 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of two storey side extension. (Renewal of lapsed 
planning permission EPF/0181/08.) 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=528870 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 

Page 4Page 14



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1563/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Hedgeside  

132 High Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5BQ 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Existing dwelling to be demolished and replaced with a two 
storey dwelling. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=530091 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: BRD/11/037/001 rev. A to  BRD/11/037/003 rev. A 
(Amended plans received 20 September 2011),  BRD/11/037/004 to 
BRD/11/037/007 received 28 July 2011  
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order), the single-storey rear projection of the house 
and the roof of the house shall not be extended or enlarged without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

5 No development, including site clearance, shall take place until a scheme of soft 
landscaping and a statement of the methods, including a timetable, for its 
Implementation (linked to the development schedule), have been submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The landscape scheme shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and the agreed timetable. If any 
plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from the 
date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by 
another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand in writing.  

Page 5Page 15



6 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details. 
 

7 Prior to occupation of the development, the existing vehicular access to the south of 
the site shall be permanently closed, incorporating the reinstatement to full height of 
the highway verge and kerbing, in accordance with details previously submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

8 The development hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of the 
proposed vehicular crossover to the north of the site and the proposed front 
boundary treatment have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 

9 No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority a plan indicating the positions, design, 
material and type of boundary treatment to be erected. The boundary treatment shall 
be completed in accordance with the approved details before the dwelling is 
occupied. 
 

 
 

Page 6Page 16



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1633/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 182 Roding Road  

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3BS 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Roding 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of the existing house and garage. Construction of 
a block of five one-bedroom flats; new vehicle access 
crossover and external landscaping. 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=530333 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 By reason of the extent of hard surfacing for a car parking area in front of the 
proposed building, which does not allow for meaningful landscaping, the proposed 
development would have an excessively hard appearance and would consequently 
form poor contrast with adjacent residential properties to the detriment of the 
character and appearance of the locality.  Accordingly, the proposal is contrary to 
policies CP2 (iv), CP7 and LL11 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
 
Members took the view that the proposed development as a whole was of a poor design that 
would appear inappropriately harsh and consequently would not respect the character of the 
locality.  Concern was raised about the roof form, which they considered to appear over-dominant 
in relation to the rest of the building.  Concern was also expressed about the location of a 
proposed refuse storage area in close proximity to the building, on the basis that odours from it 
may cause poor living conditions in some adjacent flats.  Greatest concern was expressed about 
the extent of hardsurfacing for a parking area in front of the proposed block and the lack of 
opportunity for landscaping.  Members found that element of the proposal particularly 
objectionable, expressing concern about the visual impact of both the hardsurfacing and of the 
cars it is designed to accommodate.  They raised no objection to the principle of developing flats at 
this site and considered the extent of hardsurfacing was a consequence of attempting to make off-
street parking provision for each flat.  Members were of the opinion that the provision of one off-
street parking space for each flat is necessary in the interests of highway safety and the amenity of 
neighbours.  They therefore found that a development of 4 flats was likely to address their 
concerns and achieve a softer appearance to the development. 
 

Page 7Page 17



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee 
South  
 
Date of meeting: 2nd November 2011 
 
Subject: CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER    

EPF/25/11 – 7 Ardmore Lane, Buckhurst Hill 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Melinda Barham (Ext 4120) 
Committee Secretary:             Gary Woodhall 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
That Tree Preservation Order 25/11 is confirmed without modification. 
 
Background 
 
1. The property has recently been marketed for sale. The large cedar tree which 
is subject to this Tree Preservation Order, stands in a prominent position and makes 
a significantly positive contribution to the street scene in view of its size, location and 
general appearance.  
 
The Grounds of Objection 
 
2. One objection has been received on behalf of the executors of the estate of 
the owner. The reasons for the objection are; 
 

a) The imposition of a preservation order on the tree will have a detrimental 
effect on the value of the property. 
b) The tree is obtrusive to the property and takes light from the rooms to the 
front of the house.  
c) The needles block gutters and downpipes.  
d) No other property in this section of the road has a large tree within the 
front garden and it is therefore out of keeping with the character of the road.  
e) There is a cedar in the grounds of Braeside School which is a more 
imposing example of the species, and therefore the cedar at 7 Ardmore Lane, 
is not a singular specimen nor is it the best specimen in Ardmore Lane.  

 
The Director of Planning and Economic Development comments as follows: 
 
3. The value of a property is not a planning consideration.  
   
4. The tree is very prominent within the street scene; however, because of the 
orientation of the property (facing north east) it would never receive direct sunlight to 
the front rooms and is likely to always be perceived to be the darker side of the 
property. The Cedar has been crown lifted; it is a fairly open aspected tree which will 
allow light to the property. 
 
5. The objector states that the branches are within 4 feet of the front door and 
because of this the gutters fill with needles. It is accepted that the tree is likely to drop 
debris on the guttering. Whilst this problem could not be eliminated its impact could 
be minimised by undertaking some pruning works. However, the agreement to any 

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



such work would need to take into account the retention of the overall shape of the 
tree. 

 
6. It is acknowledged that there are no other significant trees within this section 
of the road. However, that is the reason why this tree is so prominent within the street 
scene, and therefore enhances its amenity value. 
 
7. There is a mature cedar within the grounds of Braeside School; however, this 
is not directly adjacent to the road and only visible if you are stood on the pavement 
looking in the school. The cedar subject to this Tree Preservation Order, is visible 
when looking up or down the road, and therefore makes a significantly positive 
contribution to the street scene 
 
Conclusion: 
 
8. In conclusion, it is recognised that a cedar in this location will cause some 
degree of inconvenience, however, this is an important feature within the street 
scene, and it is recommended that the Order is confirmed without modification.  
 
 
 
 

Page 20



Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee 
South  
 
Date of meeting: 2 November 2011 
 
Subject: NON CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION    

ORDER EPF/10/11 – Hazelwood, Loughton 
 
Officer contact for further information:  Robin Hellier (Ext 4546) 
Committee Secretary:             Gary Woodhall 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
That Tree Preservation Order 10/11 is not confirmed  
 
Background 
 
1.  This Tree Preservation Order is to protect those trees still worthy of 
preservation that to date have been covered by an area Order made in 1970. It also 
includes some additional trees considered worthy of protection that have been 
planted since 1970.  
 
The Director of Planning and Economic Development comments as follows: 
 
2. Following the sealing of this document, but prior to the serving of the Order, it 
was noted that; 
 

a) The Order also included trees within Upper Park and therefore the title of the 
Order was incorrect.  
b) Some important trees had been omitted from the survey and subsequent new 
Order in error.  

 
3.  A new replacement Order (TPO/EPF/26/11) has been sealed and served.  
 
4. By formally making the decision not to confirm this Order it keeps the 
Council’s records up to date. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
5. It is recommended that the Order is not confirmed.  
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH 

2 November 2011 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1. EPF/1497/11 Manor Hall 
144 Manor Road 
Chigwell 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

25 

2. EPF/1616/11 
 

1 Marjorams Avenue 
Loughton 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

31 

3. EPF/1637/11 
 

6 Millwell Crescent 
Chigwell 
 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

39 

4. EPF/1671/11 
 

Land adj 
14 Ely Place  
Chigwell  
 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

43 

5. EPF/1686/11 
 

9 Field Close 
Buckhurst Hill 
 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

52 

6. EPF/1699/11 
 

15 Chigwell Rise 
Chigwell 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

56 

7. EPF/1732/11 
 

Lingmere 
Vicarage Lane 
Chigwell 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

62 

8. EPF/1745/11 
 

1 Pudding Lane  
Chigwell 
 

Refuse Permission  
(Householder) 

75 

9 EPF/1857/11 
 

20 Lechmere Avenue 
Chigwell 
 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

80 

10. EPF/1895/11 
 

49 Lee Grove 
Chigwell 

 
Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

84 

11. EPF/1896/11 
 

49 Lee Grove 
Chigwell 
 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

88 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1497/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Manor Hall 

144 Manor Road 
Chigwell 
Essex 
 IG7 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

APPLICANT: W Spouse 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Variation of condition 19 'Highway Improvement' of planning 
permission EPF/2211/05 (Outline application for 
redevelopment of site with 10 no. two bedroom flats, parking 
and amenity areas -revised application) to allow works to be 
completed within 12 months. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=529879 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 Prior to the first occupation of the development details of screen walls, fences or 
such similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, 
and shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved 
and maintained in the agreed positions. 
 

2 If any plant planted in accordance with the Approved Landscaping Scheme (agreed 
through application ref. EPF/1496/11 on 13th September 2011) dies, becomes 
diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same 
kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a 
variation beforehand, and in writing. 
 

3 Hard and Soft landscaping shall be maintained for a minimum period of five years, in 
accordance with details approved in the Schedule of Landscape Maintenance, 
agreed under application ref. EPF/1496/11 on 13th September 2011. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the detail shown on the approved plan, gates shall not be erected 
on the vehicular access to the site without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

5 Prior to the first occupation of the development, a phased contaminated land 
investigation shall be undertaken to assess the presence of contaminants at the site 
in accordance with an agreed protocol as below.  Should any contaminants be found 
in unacceptable concentrations, appropriate remediation works shall be carried out 

Page 25



and a scheme for any necessary maintenance works adopted. 
 
Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the 
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the LPA and the completed phase 1 
investigation shall be submitted to the LPA upon completion for approval. 
 
Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a 
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA before 
commencing the study and the completed phase 2 investigation with remediation 
proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the LPA prior to any remediation 
works being carried out. 
 
Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance 
programme shall be submitted to the LPA for approval prior to first occupation of the 
completed development. 
 
 

6 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the first occupation of the development.  The assessment shall 
include calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention 
using Windes or other similar programme.  The approved measures shall be 
undertaken prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved and 
shall be adequately maintained. 
 

7 Prior to the first use of the accesses a 1.5m x 1.5m pedestrian visibility sight splay 
as measured from the highway boundary shall be provided on both sides of each 
vehicular access.  There shall be no obstruction above a height of 600mm as 
measured from the finished surface of the access within the area of the visibility 
sight splays thereafter. 
 

8 Prior to the occupation of the development, details of refuse collection shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be 
provided prior to the first occupation. 
  
 
 

9 Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted the existing crossovers 
shall be removed and the footway reinstated. 
 

10 Within 3 calendar months of the date of this decision, a scheme shall be submitted 
to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing, detailing works to the adjacent 
highway necessitated by this scheme, including a tactile dropped footway and 
crossing point to Stanwyk Drive and improvements to the Bus Stop on the opposite 
side of Manor Road, just west of the site.  These works should include a raised kerb 
and bus shelter.  The agreed works shall be completed in accordance with the 
agreed detail within 12 calendar months of the date of their approval by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



This application is before this Committee since it is an application for development of a significant 
scale and/or wider concern and is recommended for approval (Pursuant to Section CL56, 
Schedule A (c) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks consent for a variation of a planning condition imposed on an outline 
planning permission for the erection of 10 flats at Manor Hall, 144 Manor Road Chigwell. 
 
The planning condition (no.19) required: 
 
Before any part of the development hereby permitted commences at the site, a scheme 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority securing 
works to the adjacent highway necessitated by this scheme, including a tactile dropped 
footway and crossing point to Stanwyk Drive and improvements to the Bus Stop on the 
opposite side of Manor Road, just west of the site.  These should include a raised kerb and 
bus shelter, and the moving of a lamp column if required and removal and replacement of 
bollards in Manor Road.  The occupation of the development shall not begin until those 
works have been completed in accordance with the Local Planning Authority's approval 
and have been certified in writing as completed by or on behalf of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
The development has been completed without these highway works having been undertaken and 
the development is, therefore in breach of this planning condition.  Accordingly, this application 
has been submitted to seek an additional period, of twelve months, to undertake these works, to 
regularise this breach.   
 
Description of Site:  
   
The application site comprises the constructed flats, car parking and landscaped areas.   
 
The site is located on the northern side of Manor Road, adjacent to its junction with Stanwyk Drive.   
 
Relevant History: 
 
 
The Planning Permission  
 
 EPF/2211/05. Outline application for redevelopment of site with 10 no. two bedroom flats, 

parking and amenity areas. (Revised application).  Approved 02/03/2006. 
 
EPF/0139/08 Revised reserved matters application for 10 flats.  Approved 12/06/2008. 
 
 
Non-Material Amendments 
 
EPF/2164/10 Application for approval of details reserved by condition 8 'Landscape 

details' of planning permission EPF/2211/05. (Outline application for 
redevelopment of site with 10 no. two bedroom flats, parking and amenity 
areas - revised application).  Approved 09/06/2011. 

 
EPF/0703/11 Non material amendment to EPF/0139/08. (Revised reserved matters 

application for 10 flats.)  Refused 28/04/2011. 
 

Page 27



EPF/1377/11 Non material amendment on EPF/0139/08 to add plan numbers as a 
condition.(Revised reserved matters application for 10 flats).  Approved 
20/07/2011.   

 
 
Approval of details reserved by condition 
 
EPF/0138/09 Application for approval of details reserved by condition 3 'materials' on 

EPF/2211/05.  Approved 04/02/2009. 
 
EPF/2164/10 Application for approval of details reserved by condition 8 'Landscape 

details' of planning permission EPF/2211/05. (Outline application for 
redevelopment of site with 10 no. two bedroom flats, parking and amenity 
areas - revised application).  Approved 09/06/2011.   

 
EPF/1496/11 Application for approval of details reserved by condition 4 'Boundary 

Treatments', condition 6 'Landscaping', condition 7 'No Mounding', condition 
9 'Landscape Maintenance', condition 10 'Surface Material', condition 11 
'Gates', condition 13 Contamination', condition 14 'Flood Risk' and condition 
16 Recycling and Refuse' of planning permission EPF/2211/05 (Outline 
application for redevelopment of site with 10 no. two bedroom flats, parking 
and amenity areas -revised application).  Split decision 13/09/2011 with 
various details approved or partially approved and others refused. 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
Local Plan 
 
ST4 – Road Safety 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
Notification of this application was sent to Chigwell Parish Council and to 50 neighbouring 
properties.  
 
The following representations have been received to date: 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL.  The Council has NO OBJECTION to this application but requests 
officers to speak to Essex County Council regarding the need and location for the bus stop and if 
not deemed to be required remove the condition.   
 
146 MANOR ROAD.  Objection raised on the following grounds: 
 
1. There is no mention of the replacement of the bollard between my property and the 

entrance to 144 Manor Road, which the developer removed at the beginning of the building 
work. 

2. There is no mention of where the lamppost will be resisted – I would not wish to see this 
nearer to my property. 

3. Any financial contribution should be a significant amount. 
4. How will the Council ensure any financial contribution is actually paid?   
 

Page 28



Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues to be considered are the impacts of the proposed variation of the planning 
condition upon highway safety and transportation within the area, as this was the reason for the 
imposition of the condition in the first place.   
 
The proposed alterations are necessary to ensure that the suitable infrastructure is provided, for 
pedestrians and other highway users.  Whilst this is necessary, it is considered that the area 
surrounding the site could operate adequately for a limited period while the improvements are 
undertaken.  Chigwell Parish Council has questioned the need for the bus stop and Essex County 
Council as Highway Authority has confirmed one is required and that improvements sought to it 
are also required.  In giving that advice the County Council also confirmed their agreement to 
extending the period of time allowed for the highways improvements to be undertaken. 
 
Whilst the scope of this type of application is limited to consideration of the variation to the 
planning condition which has been sought, if approved, it will result in a new decision being issued 
in respect of the original planning permission.  Accordingly, any conditions attached to the original 
consent which remain relevant will need to be imposed upon this decision.  Whilst some conditions 
have been agreed, their ongoing compliance in accordance with those agreed details will need to 
be secured.  Furthermore, there are other conditions where the Council has yet to fully agree 
details and those conditions will need to be repeated in their entirety, although in some cases with 
appropriate alteration to their compliance period having regard to the stage the development is at.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that the proposed variation to the condition is 
acceptable.  It is, therefore, recommended that planning permission be granted.   
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mrs Katie Smith 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564109 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

69.5m

66.4m

66.1m

8

9

1 5 6

49

Hall

5 1

Manor

7  t o  1 0

1 
to

 6

Hall

El Sub Sta

St Winifred's
Church

1

1 4 2

2

1 4 6

1 5 2

14

1 1

10

11

2

1

1 5

STA N W
Y C K

 D R I V E

L ECH
M

ERE AVEN
U

E

Posts

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 
Application Number: EPF/1497/11 
Site Name: Manor Hall, 144 Manor Road, 

Chigwell, IG7 5PX 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 30



Report Item No 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1616/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 1 Marjorams Avenue 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1PT 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs Samina Dean  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolish side gable extension and adapt rear roof slope with 
new rear dormer and gable end roof. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION:  Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=530271 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Caroline Pond, 
(Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (h) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of proposal: 
 
This application proposes the following works: 
 
1. Demolishing the existing side roof extension with parapet wall 
2. Constructing gabled roof enlargement in place of demolished roof extension with a pitch 

matching that of the original roof 

Page 31



3. Reducing the pitch of the rear facing roof slope of the roof over a two-storey rear 
extension. 

4. Retaining a rear facing dormer window that links into the east facing slope of the roof over 
the two-storey rear extension. 

 
Roof tiles would match those of the original main roof. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is a corner plot and accommodates a two-storey semi detached dwelling at the 
junction with Marjoram’s Avenue (front facing elevation) and Church Hill. The street scene is made 
up of detached and semi detached properties and town houses are situated to the west of the 
subject site. The site is on the crest of Church Hill and is screened by sparse vegetation on its 
western boundary.  
 
The subject dwelling is finished in red-brown facing brick work and a first floor timber façade. The 
original roof was pitched and tiled with a gable end feature to the front and hip roof to the side 
profile. The front fenestration was of lattice glass, flush with the wall surface, and with corner 
windows at first floor level.  
 
Whilst the dwellings on Marjorams Avenue vary in design and sizes, Nos. 1 to 17, form a row of 
eight semi-detached dwellings built to an identical design concept and despite subsequent 
additions and alterations, the properties retain common features. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0164/98 First floor side extension over existing garage.  Refused 
EPF/0862/09 Two storey side and rear extension, garage.  Refused 
EPF/1514/09 Two storey side and rear extensions, single storey rear extension (Revised 

application). Approved 
EPF/0733/10 Erection of outbuilding. Approved 
EPF/2015/10 Retention of two storey side and rear extension. Single storey front, side and 

rear extensions. Loft extension with dormer in roof. Refused 8 December 
2010 on design grounds. 
 
A subsequent appeal was dismissed on 8 March 2011.  In dismissing the 
appeal the Inspector found the main issue to consider is the effect of the 
extensions on the character and appearance of the area around Marjorams 
Avenue and Church Hill.  The Inspector concluded the dormer extensions to 
be harmful to that character and appearance because of their excessive 
scale, unsympathetic form and materials, incongruous side elevation and 
overbearing roof treatment. 

 
 
ENF/0474/10 Enforcement notice issued on 3 February 2011 following the refusal of 

application EPF/2015/10.  The notice alleges: 
 
Without planning permission, alterations to the roof of the dwelling consisting 
of the erection of a rear dormer with six windows and the extension of the 
roof to form a book end parapet. 
 
The requirements of the notice are: 
 

Page 32



1. Reduce the rear dormer to no more than 3 metres in width and reduce the 
number of windows to 3 such that the development complies with approved 
Drawing No 1MR/PL2/01 Rev A under planning permission EPF/1514/09 and 

2. Remodel the roof so as to remove the book end parapet and replace with a 
hipped roof in compliance with approved Drawing No 1MR/PL2/01 Rev A 
under planning permission EPF/1514/09 
 
No appeal was made against the enforcement notice, which consequently 
became effective on 17 March 2011.  The compliance period of 6 months 
expired on 17 September when this application was still being considered. 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations 
 
CP2  Protecting the Quality of the Built Environment 
DBE9  Impact of New Development 
DBE10  Design and Appearance  
 
Summary of Representations Received 
 
6 properties were consulted and the following responses received: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – The proposal provided a marginal improvement on the existing 
structure but members considered the works were still unsightly and intruded in the street scene. 
 
3 MARJORAMS AVENUE – I would like to strongly object to the above application for the following 
reasons: 

• Any alterations or changes to number 1 Marjorams Avenue have a significant impact on the 
quality of life and privacy at my own home.   

• The owner of number 1 Marjorams Avenue was given permission for an already out of 
proportion conversion and decided to ignore it and build even bigger – adding the extra 
gable on the side, dormer on the back, dome on roof of the rear extension and making the 
roof line higher than it should be.  

• The building is now of intimidating proportions and directly overlooks their house and 
garden.  These semis are single family dwellings - and this is the case in every one of them, 
EXCEPT number 1 Marjorams Avenue which currently accommodates 9 people (in 3 
separate family units).  The number of windows on the back of the property makes it similar 
to block of flats and not a semi- detached house.  The house originally had two upstairs 
windows and now has six! With the additional bungalow which has been erected at the 
bottom of the garden immediately facing my house (which has all the mains services 
connected to it) this project is just getting bigger and bigger.   

• Currently the way the loft conversion at number 1 Marjorams Avenue has been built, with 
the extra dormer window on the back, looks completely different to No. 3 (which also has a 
loft conversion but no extra bits sticking out).  I would like it to be brought back to the 
approved version as it would give a little more balance to the “semi” description.   

• The roof of the rear double storey extension is overwhelmingly large. There has been no 
intention to make it look reasonable. Quite clearly from the plans, the change in the roof is 
another attempt to create extra living space as included in the application is a request for a 
roof light window to be fitted on the side of it. This is in addition to the original permission 
which turned 3 bedroom semi into 7 bedrooms, 4 bathrooms, 3 reception rooms, dining 
room and kitchen.  The house will become an 8 bedroom semi.  

• Light dome has also been installed, which is directly adjacent to my bedroom window and 
shines straight into my bedroom. This should be removed. 

Page 33



• The number of the windows on the loft conversion has gone up from one to three!  This 
should be kept in line with the permitted plans.  

• The occupier has decided to alter the side gable extension which is an improvement; 
however this does not affect me so much as the changes on the back of the property.  It 
appears that the most concern is to make changes to the side of number 1 Marjorams 
Avenue; however this does not affect anyone as there are no properties to the side of it, 
only the main road.  Yet the impact on my family seems to be completely ignored.  I have 
their windows within 2 meters directly looking onto my patio.  

• There is lack of consideration shown and whatever work is done at this property, affects our 
property, not only in the way of appearance but also and mostly in the way of the putting up 
with the building work which has been ongoing for up to 18 months of very noisy and dirty 
building work.  

• None of the staff of Epping Forest Planning Department or any other official body (Loughton 
Parish etc.) have actually visited the site properly as none of them have been IN MY 
property, checking the impact it has on my family. 

• I would question how the building inspector did not immediately notice that this building 
work had not followed the plans.  How can the building inspector fail to notice such major 
changes to the building as it is being built? I would be interested to know how this has been 
overlooked, especially when I had drawn it to the council’s attention and I am no building 
expert.   

• This application should be refused outright in order to return some much needed balance to 
our semi-detached properties.  If permission is granted, it will send out the message to the 
general public: to build what you like and you WILL get away with it one way or the other. 

• Due to the holiday period, I requested an extension to the 3 week deadline to respond to 
this current application but only got part of the time that is normally allowed.  That doesn’t 
seem consistent with the timescale and extensions granted to my neighbours over this 
entire matter. 

• Finally in regard to the all plans submitted for number 1 Marjorams Avenue, none appear to 
have a drawn scale rather than description which I understand to be a requirement for all 
town planning drawing and applications.  Therefore they should be rejected on that basis.  
Perhaps if they were drawn with a scale the Council would appreciate the size of the 
monstrosity that has been built.   
 

 
5 MARJORAMS AVENUE: Objection raised to the overall scale of extension built on the basis that 
it is harmful to the character of the locality and results in a house so large it would generate 
additional demand for on-street parking that cannot easily be accommodated. 
 
10 MARJORAMS AVENUE: Objection raised to the overall scale of extension built on the basis 
that it is harmful to the character of the locality and results in a house so large it would generate 
additional demand for on-street parking that cannot easily be accommodated. 
 
15 MARJORAMS AVENUE: Strongly object. Proposal has been turned down by the Planning 
Inspector and there is an outstanding enforcement notice. This could set a precedent for other 
people to build without permission. Building is out of character with other semi. Parking is a big 
concern. There are 3 separate families occupying the premises. Neighbours have had to put up 
with dirt, dust, noise and disruption over a lengthy period. 3 months is adequate for the applicants 
to sort things out.  The applicant should not be allowed to fail to comply with the enforcement 
notice. 
 
21 MARJORAMS AVENUE: Concern because these plans are being considered when the original 
plans were nothing as agreed. This will allow others to build and get plans accepted at a later date. 
 

Page 34



21 HILL TOP: Objects. Have endured 18 months of inconvenience, noise, dust etc. only to 
discover the building has not been built in accordance with the approved plans,. The owner must 
stick to the plans and not flout the law. The site is overdeveloped. The house can accommodate 
multiple tenants and as a consequence multiple cars. The house no longer has a garage. 
 
103/105 CHURCH HILL: The time scale given of 1 year to rectify the non-compliance of works 
carried is of concern because the house will not ever be modified. Conditions with any approval 
should therefore be sufficiently stringent to prevent this situation arising. 
 
10 CHURCH LANE: Objection raised to the overall scale of extension built on the basis that it is 
harmful to the character of the locality.  Concern that the Council is not being consistent in its 
decision making. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Planning permission has previously been approved for a dormer window, hip to gable roof 
alteration, two storey and single storey extensions to this property under planning permission 
EPF/1514/09.  The design was altered and as a consequence the extension has not been built in 
accordance with the approved plan. A planning application for the retention of the works carried 
out without planning consent was refused under ref. EPF/2015/10.  An appeal was lodged and 
dismissed.  In the meantime an enforcement notice was issued requiring alterations to the dormer 
window and roof form of the main part of the house to accord with planning permission 
EPF/1514/09 and that notice is effective.  The enforcement notice does not capture the two-storey 
rear extension in its allegation and therefore the requirements of the notice do not relate to it. 
 
This application is a response to the appeal decision and effective enforcement notice.  The 
applicant proposes a design solution that largely accords with the roof design approved in the 
2009 consent which the enforcement notice seeks to have implemented.  It goes beyond the 
requirements of the enforcement notice in proposing corrective works to the two-storey extension.  
However, the proposal deviates from the 2009 permission and consequently the notice 
requirements by seeking the retention of the flat roofed dormer adjacent to the attached neighbour, 
3 Marjorams Avenue, in its presently constructed form. 
 
There is no difficulty with the proposed alterations to the roof of the two-storey rear extension 
which would achieve a roof form in accordance with that approved in the 2009 consent.  
Accordingly, and since effective enforcement notice requires the implementation of all the 
proposed works to the main roof with the exception of the proposed retention of the dormer 
window adjacent to 3 Marjorams Avenue, the main matter to assess in this application is the merits 
of that dormer window.  The main planning issue raised by it is design, but impact on living 
conditions of neighbours will also be assessed in this report. 
 
A matter of considerable importance for objectors is also the impact of the development as a 
whole.  While Officers have sympathy for the sentiment of objections, the fact is this planning 
application does not relate to the whole development that has been carried out.  Consequently, 
when deciding whether planning permission should be given for the proposal the District Council 
must restrict its assessment to the proposal before it.  It cannot make a decision based an 
assessment of the impact of the two-storey rear extension, a single-storey extension erected on 
the boundary with 3 Marjorams Avenue or a first floor side extension.  The District Council has 
already taken a clear position on them by giving planning permission in 2009 and subsequently 
taking enforcement action to secure the implementation of a design for the main roof of the house 
in accordance with that consent. 
 

Page 35



Design of dormer window: 
 
The approved rear dormer was smaller than that which presently exists with a single three pane 
glazed window.  The existing dormer extends the approved design 2.5m such that it ties into the 
east facing roof slope of the two-storey rear extension.  The additional part of the design projects a 
further 700mm rearwards giving the roof plan of the dormer as a whole an L shape. 
 
The extended dormer is not seen from the street although it is particularly noticeable from the rear 
garden of 3 Marjorams Avenue its height and alignment is very similar to that of a rear dormer at 3 
Marjorams Avenue.  While the join with the roof over the two-storey rear extension is awkward, the 
original main roof of the house together with the roof of the two-storey extension screen views of it 
from Church Hill and Marjorams Avenue.  Since it is not generally seen from any public area it is of 
no consequence for the character and appearance of the locality. 
 
Impact of dormer window on living conditions: 
 
The dormer as constructed does not cause any greater degree of overlooking of neighbours than 
the dormer approved in the 2009 consent.  That is because the additional windows are situated 
further from the boundary with 3 Marjorams Avenue than those of the approved dormer window 
and because one of them is obscure glazed in any event.  The additional bulk of the dormer is not 
so great that it appears excessively overbearing when seen from neighbouring properties.  Having 
regard to these facts it is clear that the dormer has no greater impact on the living conditions of 
neighbours than the approved dormer would. 
 
Other considerations: 
 
The neighbours have requested because of the previous refusal supported by the Inspectors 
Decision to dismiss the appeal, that a condition should be imposed that requires the new works to 
commence and be completed within a prescribed time scale.  
 
Since there is an effective enforcement notice dealing with works to the roof of the house it is 
therefore not necessary to impose a condition that requires works proposed in this application to 
be completed within a prescribed time as part of any consent given.  That is because the main 
changes to the roof proposed are identical to the requirements of the enforcement notice.  If the 
landowner fails to implement the proposal he would be at risk of prosecution for failing to comply 
with the requirements of the enforcement notice. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Considerable objection is raised to the proposal but the specific concerns raised are directed at 
the bulk of the additions approved under the 2009 consent.  Since they are not directed at what is 
actually proposed their weight is very limited. 
 
The proposal is equivalent to the main requirements of the enforcement notice issued in February 
2011, which is now effective and seeks a roof form consistent with that approved in the 2009 
consent.  The proposal to reduce the pitch of the rear facing roof slope of a two-storey rear 
extension is acceptable in design terms, achieving the same pitch approved in the 2009 consent.  
The main proposed deviation from the requirement of the enforcement notice and the 2009 
consent is the retention of a rear dormer built adjacent to the boundary with 3 Marjorams Avenue.  
While not ideal, it is of no consequence for the character and appearance of the locality and does 
not cause harm to the living conditions of neighbours.  On that basis it is recommended that 
planning permission be given for the proposal. 
 
 

Page 36



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Paula Onyia 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564103 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

70.1m

58.5m

65.8m

63.4m

18

23

11

1 2
2

111

113

1 2
6

1 2
4

Depot

11

15

105103

19

1 4
1 0

107

109

109a

107a

Hall

Church Hall

1 2

2

4

13

2

1

7

1

2 a

British

1 1
8

8

Legion

1 6

8

Club

1

S t  J o
h n ' s  L o d g e

Nursing Home

1  t o  8

1 0
8

Meads

1

8

2

1 0

6

3

8

1

77

73

G R A S M E R E  C
L O

S E

M A R J O R A M S A V EN U E

C H
U R C

H  H
I L

L

C H U R C H  C L O SE

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 
Application Number: EPF/1616/11 
Site Name: 1 Marjorams Avenue, Loughton, 

IG10 1PT 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 38



Report Item No 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1637/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 6 Millwell Crescent 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5HY 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Stephen Smith  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension and internal alterations including 
garage conversion. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=530350 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The applicant seeks planning permission for the construction of a single storey rear extension and 
the conversion of an existing integral garage into a dining room. 
 
The extension would be located on the north western corner of the dwelling house. It would project 
2.4 metres from the original rear façade and have a width of 2.9 metres. The extension would have 
a flat roof with a roof light.  
 
As a result of the garage conversion the only external change to the front façade of the building 
would be replacing the garage door with a bay window. Other internal alterations are required such 
as blocking up and creating new internal openings.  
 

Page 39



Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is located on the western side of Millwell Cresent approximately 35 metres south 
of Manor Road within Chigwell. The site itself is relatively level although there is a gradual slope 
that falls from north to south along Millwell Crescent.  
 
A double storey detached dwelling house finished in render is located towards the front of the site. 
Off street parking is located on the hard surface towards the front of the dwelling or within the 
integral garage. A private open space area which is screened by a timber paling fence on the side 
and rear boundaries is located to the rear of the site.  
 
The site is located within a well established residential area that mainly comprises of detached 
houses. Building form, shape and scale of surrounding dwellings are similar to the subject site. 
Front setbacks from the highway are consistent within the street scene. There are no parking 
restrictions along Millwell Crescent.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
There is no relevant recorded planning history for the subject site. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Protecting the rural and built environment 
DBE9  Loss of Amenity 
DBE10  Residential Extensions 
ST4  Road Safety 
ST6  Car Parking 
 
Summary of Representations 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: Objects. 
 
The Council objects to this application on the grounds of the loss of parking. 
 
NEIGHBOURS: No response received.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues are as follows: 
 

• Design and appearance 
• Neighbouring amenities 
• Car parking 

 
Design and appearance: 
 
The proposed conversion of the garage into a habitable room would not result in a harmful impact 
upon the character and appearance of the street scene. The new bay window that would replace 
the garage door would be centrally positioned within the front projecting end and would be well 
balanced with the front dormer window above it providing symmetry to the building. The bay 
window provides articulation to the front façade of the dwelling house creating a visually interesting 
development. 
 

Page 40



Turning to the design of the rear extension, overall the development is appropriate. It is relatively 
small for a rear extension in terms of its scale and it would be set off the side boundary. It would 
appear subservient and form an integral part to the original dwelling. The extension would not 
result in a harmful impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area. 
 
Neighbouring amenities: 
 
Neither the proposed extension nor the garage conversion would result in any harm to the living 
conditions of neighbouring properties.  
 
Car Parking:  
 
In relation to the Parish Council’s concern regarding a loss of parking on the site, it is noted as a 
result of the garage conversion there would be a loss of one off street parking space. However 
there is still room for at least two off street car parking spaces on the hard standing area towards 
the front of the dwelling house which more than meets the car parking standards for a four 
bedroom house in this location. There are no parking restrictions along Millwell Crescent and as 
such there is also room for any overspill on the highway.  
 
Also the subject site could not be in a better location when it comes to public transport links with 
the Grange Hill Underground Station located less than 300 metres away while a regular bus 
service runs along Manor Road, 30m north of the site.  
 
The proposed development would not result in an unsatisfactory amount of off street parking or 
result in traffic congestion within the surrounding locality.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
In conclusion, the proposed development is acceptable in terms of its design and appearance in 
that it would reflect and maintain the character of the street scene and the surrounding area 
without causing a harmful impact to the amenities of adjoining property occupiers. There would 
also be sufficient parking on site to meet the needs of residents. The development is in 
accordance with the policies contained within the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations and 
therefore it is recommended that the application be approved subject to conditions. 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Lindsay Trevillian 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564337 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

71.9m

70.1m

62.8m

2c

2

2a

2b

1  t o  1 7

14

26

25

El Sub Sta

1 8 6

2

1

1 7 4

64

40

5 2

69
11

14

2833

81

1 7 2

79
79

34

1 8 8

77

M I L L W E L L  C R E S C E N T

NORTH DENE

M
OUNT  P LE AS ANT  ROAD

M A N O R  R O A D

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 
Application Number: EPF/1637/11 
Site Name: 6 Millwell Crescent, Chigwell, IG7 

5HY 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 42



Report Item No 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1671/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land adj 

14 Ely Place  
Chigwell  
Essex  
IG8 8AG 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs Rose Kelly 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Extension of time limit to EPF/0904/08. (Erection of new 
dwelling. Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=530400 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 
 

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 17307/01D, 2F, 3E, 4L, 07, 08 and the submitted location 
plan.   
 
 

4 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed and shall remain in use for the construction 
phase of the development. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site. 
 

5 No development, including site clearance, shall take place until a scheme of soft 
landscaping and a statement of the methods, including a timetable, for its 
Implementation (linked to the development schedule), have been submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The landscape scheme shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and the agreed timetable. If any 
plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from the 

Page 43



date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by 
another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand in writing.  
 
 

6 No development shall take place until details of the proposed surface materials for 
the car parking area have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The agreed surfacing shall be made of porous materials and 
retained thereafter or provision shall be made and retained thereafter to direct run-
off water from the hard surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within the 
curtilage of the property. The agreed surface treatment shall be completed prior to 
the first occupation of the development or within 1 year of the substantial completion 
of the development hereby approved, whichever occurs first. 
 
 

7 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents and visitors vehicles. 
 
 

8 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

9 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no fences, walls, hedges or similar structure 
shall be formed or constructed in the front garden area beyond the proposed house 
without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

10 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any 
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present 
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland 
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, 
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 
 

11 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 

Page 44



Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 
 

12 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 
 

13 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report 
(referred to in PPS23 as a Validation Report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of 
the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary 
monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes 
relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall 
be implemented.   
 
 

14 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 
 

Page 45



15 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
opening in the west flank elevation shall be fitted with obscured glass and have fixed 
frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is 
installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 
 

16 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other Statutory Instrument revoking 
or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on the approved plan 
shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the development hereby permitted 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this committee since it is for a type of development that can not be 
determined by officers if more than 2 objections material to the planning merits of the application 
have been received (Persuant to The Constitution, Part  Three: Planning Directorate-delegation of 
Council Function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is to extend the time limit on planning permission EPF/0904/08. This proposal is to 
erect a new two-storey dwelling on the side garden of 14 Ely Place.  The development would 
include off-street parking for two vehicles to the front with private garden located at the rear. A 
700mm high retaining wall is proposed on the boundary the parking area with 14 Ely Place. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The site contains a detached house on an irregular plot in a cul de sac. The street is characterised 
by detached and semi detached houses of a similar type. The site slopes down to the west. The 
site is covered by an Area Tree Protection Order and is currently overgrown and disused.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
TPO/EPF/0053/84 Felling of oak tree. Grant Permission - 26/11/1984. 
EPF/0406/86 Erection of dwelling house (outline). Refuse Permission - 28/04/1986. 
EPF/2048/07 Erection of new house. Withdrawn Decision - 30/10/2007. 
EPF/2664/07 Erection of a new house. (Revised application). Refuse Permission - 

07/02/2008. 
EPF/0904/08 Erection of new dwelling. (Revised application). Grant Permission (With 

Conditions) - 04/09/2008. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1  Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives 
CP2  Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP3  New Development 
CP4  Energy Conservation 
CP5  Sustainable Building  
CP6  Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns 
CP7  Urban Form and Quality 
DBE1  Design of New Buildings 
DBE2  Effect on Neighbouring Properties 

Page 46



DBE3  Design in Urban Areas 
DBE8  Private Amenity Space 
DBE9  Excessive Loss of Amenity to Neighbouring Properties 
ST1  Location of Development 
ST2  Accessibility of Development  
ST4  Road Safety 
ST6  Vehicle Parking 
H2A  Previously Developed Land 
H3A  Housing Density  
H4A  Dwelling Mix 
LL10  Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention  
LL11  Landscaping Schemes  
RP4  Contaminated Land  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
11 properties consulted – 3 replies received.  
 
13 ELY PLACE: Objection. Drawing 17307/03 E shows our house much further from the proposal 
property than is the reality. The new house will look directly into our property. This form of 
development is against recent government guidance in relation to garden grabbing. Building 
another house will destroy the community feel in this quiet cul de sac. The proposed dwelling will 
result in a cramped form of development and would appear out of character. The proposed 
dwelling would look directly into three dwellings in Ely Place and dwellings in Saint Mary’s Way at 
the rear. The necessary retaining wall would be totally out of character with the estate. The house 
will appear overbearing in the streetscene and not in keeping. The staggered roof line is not in 
character. Private amenity space to the rear would be extremely small. The loss of the tree which 
has amenity value would be disappointing. Car parking provision is not sufficient for the 
development proposed. The area is not well served by public transport. There is no garage 
proposed with is out of character. There would be potential impact on trees in the vicinity. Previous 
applications for a dwelling were refused. 
 
21 ELY PLACE: Objection. The lack of a garage would be out of character. Parking concerns. 
Concern about overlooking of the front of our property. The proposal is against recent government 
guidance with regards to garden grabbing.  
 
12 SAINT MARY’S WAY: Objection. This proposal now constitutes garden grabbing which is 
contrary to recent government guidance. Impact from the approved scheme is creating uncertainty 
for residents with regards to addressing its potential impact when built.  
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: No Objection.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this application are: 

1. Principle of the development 
2. Context/Design  
3. Neighbours Amenity 
4. Landscaping  
5. Parking  

 
And whether there have been any material changes in the specific circumstances of the site since 
the 2008 approval.  
 

Page 47



Principle of development  
 
A number of objectors have raised the point that this proposal is now contrary to government 
guidance with regards to “garden grabbing”. Recent Government amendments to PPS3 have 
excluded residential gardens from the definition of previously developed land in Annex B and the 
minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare has been deleted from paragraph 47. This is a 
material consideration when determining planning applications. PPS3 does however still promote 
the efficient use of land in the provision of housing, where it respects the character of the area. 
 
In this case the proposed house would not be sited in within a rear garden area a position remote 
from any street such that it would have with no relationship to the road and consequently clearly 
conflict with the established pattern of development in the locality.  Rather, it would be sited 
logically between houses at 12 and 14 Ely Place, respecting the building line of both and clearly 
forming an integral part of the street scene.  Moreover, the immediate area is characterised by a 
specific style of dwelling which the design of the proposal pays close attention to.  As a result of its 
sensitive siting and design the proposed building would therefore respect and indeed complement 
the character and appearance of the locality whilst providing a more efficient use of land in a 
sustainable location. Accordingly the proposal does not conflict with amendments to PPS3 and the 
principle of the development remains acceptable. 
 
Building in Context/Design  
 
The proposed building would be located in the garden area to the side of No14 Ely Place. The plot 
would be approximately 11.9m wide by 20.0m deep. The proposed ridge level pays close attention 
to the fall in the ground level from No14 to the adjacent plot of No13 and in this regard the 
proposed dwelling would not appear overbearing or out of place. The proposed scheme retains a 
gap of 1.0m on either side which would mean that the development would not appear cramped in 
its context.  
 
The proposed design is similar to the existing dwellings on the cul de sac. Although objectors have 
pointed out that the proposed dwelling would not have a detached garage, unlike the other 
properties, this is not considered a serious design flaw. The proposed retaining wall is necessary 
and because of its low height would not be clearly noticeable within the immediate area. Overall 
this building would not appear out of place within the streetscene.  
 
Objectors have also expressed concern that the 2008 decision to grant consent was contrary to a 
decision to dismiss an appeal in 1986 against the refusal of Outline planning permission for a 
detached house on the site. The 1986 appeal is considered as a material consideration in this 
case but its weight has been much reduced following subsequent changes in national and local 
planning policy to encourage the reuse of previously developed urban land. As stated, it is not 
considered that the revisions to PPS3 remove this type of development from this policy aim.  
 
In addition much of the 1986 appeal hinged on the provision of a replacement TPO tree on this 
site. Whilst permission was granted to fell the tree (an Oak) in 1984, a replacement was expected 
to be planted. However, following the appeal decision in 1989 the District Council, on advice from 
the Tree and Landscape Team, waived the requirement for a replacement tree on the basis that 
the area had a large number of mature trees remaining. Therefore much of the justification of the 
Inspector’s decision has been removed with the acceptance of the permanent removal of the TPO 
tree without replacement in the 1980’s.  The consequence of that and the policy changes since 
were negate the weight of the 1986 appeal decision and subsequently planning permission for the 
proposal was granted in 2008. 
 
There are no clear obvious changes in the circumstances at the site since the 2008 approval at 
committee level. Therefore it is considered that this scheme will provide housing on previously 
developed urban land and would not be excessively out of keeping or over dominant when viewed 

Page 48



against the other properties on this estate. The dwelling can be accommodated within the site 
without appearing cramped. 
 
Neighbour Amenity  
 
The main neighbours that would be affected by the development are No 11, 12, 13 Ely Place, 8, 9 
and 12 St Marys Way. Again there does not appear to be any material change in circumstances 
with regards to neighbour amenity and the original analysis as recorded below is still pertinent.  
 
The fronts of No 11, 12 and 13 Ely Place will not be adversely overlooked by this scheme. All of 
these properties have their front elevation to the cul-de-sac which is far less sensitive to 
overlooking than rear elevations. To the rear the properties in St Marys Way form a ‘V’ with the 
apex towards the rear garden of the proposal. Therefore both No 8 and 9 are at an angle of 
around 60º to this scheme, at a distance of 19.0m from the rear elevation of the proposal to the 
corner of the nearest property at No 9. No 12 is some 22.0m distant at an angle of 40º. The Essex 
Design Guide states that back to back distances between new and existing houses should be 
25.0m, but if the properties are at an angle this distance can be reduced as the angle increases. 
Therefore in this case it is considered that due to the orientation of the buildings and the distances 
involved that no adverse overlooking of any of these properties would occur. It is also the case that 
some screening is provided by the mature trees on the boundaries and in gardens in this area.  
 
There will be no adverse loss of light or sunlight to any neighbouring property due to the 
orientation and distances involved. No 13 to the west is about 1.5m lower than the scheme and 
therefore the impact on the outlook of this property should be considered. The new building will be 
a minimum of 8m from No 13, and offset to the left when viewed from the front of No 13, with the 
front building line being beyond the northern flank of No 13. Due to the siting and topography of 
the site it is considered that the scheme will not be overbearing to No 13. The proposed amenity 
spaces for the existing and proposed properties will be 220m² and 110m² respectively, which meet 
the requirements of the local plan.  
 
Landscaping 
 
Whilst an Area Tree Preservation Order covers the site there are no trees on the site which are 
covered by the order. There was a large conifer on the site which was removed in 2007, but this 
was not covered by the provisions of the TPO. 
The front area to the road is grass with an ornamental tree. This will be removed, but this is a non-
native species and the Council’s Landscaping Officer could not support its retention on planning 
grounds, particularly as it is not worthy of retaining or preserving. A landscaping condition will be 
attached to any approved scheme.  
 
Parking  
 
The area available for parking is 11.0m wide and 6.5m deep which provides adequate space for 
two cars to be parked, in line with current parking standards. This is an estate where many 
properties have vehicle parking at the front of the plot, so this is an acceptable scheme in this 
location once the landscape treatment is included.  
 
Contaminated Land  
 
The Contaminated Land Officer has stated that due to the sites former use as a rubbish tip there 
may be a need for remedial work. Therefore the standard contaminated land conditions are 
deemed necessary.   
 

Page 49



Conclusion:  
 
This is an application to extend the time limit on the previously approved scheme. Such 
applications require an analysis to determine if there have been any material changes in the 
interim period which would warrant a reversal of the original decision. As this is not the case with 
this application the proposed development is recommended for approval with conditions.  
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 50



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

19

4

6

24
5

7

23

1 7

11

22

2935

34

5 8

31

17

53

25

1 2

5 4

6

19

12

1

E L Y
 P L A

C E

W A Y

EM M A U S W A Y

S T  M A R Y S

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 
Application Number: EPF/1671/11 
Site Name: Land adj, 14 Ely Place, Chigwell, 

IG8 8AG 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 51



Report Item No 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1686/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 9 Field Close 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5AQ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

APPLICANT: Dr Siraj Adam 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of two rear dormer windows. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=530463 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it is for a type of development that cannot be 
determined by officers because more than 4 objections material to the planning merits of the 
proposal have been received (pursuant to the Constitution, Part Three : Planning Directorate – 
Delegation of Council Function, Schedule 1, Appendix A (f.))    
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Provision of two rear dormer windows in connection with loft conversion.  
  
Description of Site: 
 
Two storey detached house in a cul de sac of similar dwellings. To the rear of the property lies two 
storey semi detached houses that front Forest Edge. 
  
Relevant History:  
 
EPF/761/03 gave permission for a two storey side extension and rear conservatory, and this 
permission has been implemented.  
 

Page 52



Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9  Loss of amenity. 
DBE10  Residential extensions. 
. 
Summary of Representations: 
 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL – no objections. 
  
NEIGHBOURS – 7 properties consulted and five replies received. 
 
17, FOREST EDGE – The dormers have been mostly built. They cause significant overlooking to 
the rear of our house, particularly to my daughters bedroom. 
 
8, FIELD CLOSE – This dormer has been built without prior permission and overlooks my 
property, thereby infringing upon my privacy. 
 
15, FOREST EDGE – Work on the windows is almost complete. They could cause a potential loss 
of privacy although there is a large tree in the rear of no.17 obscuring views of our garden. 
However, there is a considerable loss of privacy to our neighbours gardens at numbers 17 and 19. 
Velux windows in the slope of the roof would be a fairer solution. 
 
FOREST EDGE – email letter received but house number not given – the windows are already in 
place and as our property sits to the rear we are now permanently overlooked into our lounge and 
first floor bedroom, and when the winter comes and leaves fall we will be overlooked into our 
kitchen too. Also no other properties in the area have dormers and if lofts have been converted 
velux windows have been used - so these dormer windows are sorely out of character. 
 
21, FOREST EDGE – Strongly object – the dormers overlook our rear bedroom, lounge, and 
garden beside the house and are at about a distance of 30 metres from these rooms  
 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The two dormer windows have already been installed although finishing works, e.g. installation of 
glazing, has ceased. Dormers such as this often fall within the remit of permitted development and 
hence planning permission would not normally be required, and the applicant states it was for this 
reason that works on the dormers commenced. However, a planning application was requested 
because a sizeable roof extension has already been built over the two storey extension allowed 
under EPF/761/03, and the volume of this roof extension, plus the two dormers, would exceed the 
50 cubic metre permitted development tolerance for roof extensions. 
 
The main issue raised by this application is one of overlooking of properties to the rear in Forest 
Edge – overlooking of the neighbouring house in Field Close is negligible. The houses in Forest 
Edge lie on land that is some 2-3 metres lower than the application property. Although there are 
mature trees and hedging close to the rear boundaries that has helped to reduce overlooking from 
first floor windows in the past, the new dormer windows are a storey higher and hence are 
conspicuous and clearly observed. For example in the case of 17 Forest  Edge the tree screen 
prevents views between the ground and first floors of the properties but the two dormers are now 
located above this tree line.  
 
There will be therefore some loss of privacy caused by the dormer windows - but is this 
overlooking serious enough to warrant a refusal of permission? The distance between the rear wall 
of the application property and the rears of the Forest Edge properties is some 37 to 39 metres 

Page 53



which is a relatively large amount and compares favourably with many other back to back 
relationships. Although the lower level of the Forest Edge houses increases the perception of 
being overlooked, at a distance of 37-39 metres the actual degree of overlooking is not material 
enough to justify withholding planning permission. That is because adopted planning policy only 
seeks to prevent excessive loss of amenity and any harm caused by the dormers is far from being 
of that order. 
 
The applicant was asked whether he would consider use of obscured glazing to reduce loss of 
privacy but he does not wish to consider this option. Although obscured glazing is sometimes 
required by a planning condition, the distance involved between properties in this case mitigates 
the degree of overlooking to the extent that such a condition would not be necessary.  
Furthermore, since the dormer windows are the main source of light and outlook for a habitable 
room (a bedroom) the imposition of such a condition would also not be reasonable. 
 
In terms of design, the dormers are modest in size with small hipped roofs and are subordinate to 
the roof as a whole. For these reasons their appearance is acceptable.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
Whilst in this instance the dormers require planning permission they give rise to back to back 
habitable room relationships that occur in many other localities. Partly because of ground level 
differences it is unfortunate that the dormers are located above the height of trees that previously 
helped to screen views between properties. However, the distance between the application 
property and houses in Forest Edge is a significant one at 37-39 metres, and this distance is well 
above the 25 metres, for instance, recommended in the Essex design guide. Consequently, while 
the concerns of objectors are sympathised with, the level of overlooking is not to a degree 
sufficient to justify a refusal of planning permission.  
  
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 54



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

126

144

7

134

1 7

2 9

29

27

1

4

6

2 0

1 8

19

2 8

10

F I
E L

D  
C L

O S
E

B R O A D F I EL D  W A Y

F O
R

E S
T  

E D
G

E

B R
O A

D F
I E

L D
 W

A Y

LB

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 
Application Number: EPF/1686/11 
Site Name: 9 Field Close, Buckhurst Hill, IG9 

5AQ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 55



Report Item No 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1699/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 15 Chigwell Rise 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6AQ 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Chahal 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Subdivision of site, demolition of brick wall and construction of 
four bedroom detached house on land adjoining 15 Chigwell 
rise. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=530542 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1- 4.  
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

4 The proposed window openings in the  flank elevations at first floor level shall be 
fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the 
floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained 
in that condition. 
 
 

5 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 

Page 56



planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 
 

6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

7 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details. 
 
 

8 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed for operational use during the construction 
phase of the development. The approved installed cleaning facilities shall be used to 
clean vehicles immediately before leaving the site. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
This application is before this committee since it is for a type of development that can not be 
determined by officers if more than 2 objections material to the planning merits of the application 
have been received (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part  Three: Planning Directorate-delegation of 
Council Function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(f).) 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is to construct a four bedroom dwelling in the existing side garden area, to the west 
of No15 Chigwell Rise. The house would be an irregular shape, 14.0m long x 9.6m wide. The ridge 
level would measure 8.4m from the existing ground level. Private amenity space would be 
provided to the rear with parking space to the front.  
 
Description of Site: 
 
The site is currently in use as a residential garden. The existing dwelling is large, detached and 
this is the general style along the road. A large brick wall extends from the flank elevation of the 
dwelling to the western boundary of the plot. The plot rises by approximately 2.0m from the 
roadway to the rear boundary and has an existing wall and railing front boundary treatment. There 
are two existing accesses from the property on to Chigwell Rise. The side and rear of the site is 
well screened by existing trees.  
 

Page 57



Relevant History: 
 
There is an extensive history of householder developments at the site the most relevant and 
recent being; 
 
EPF/0406/03 Retention of front boundary wall, railings and gates. Refuse Permission - 

21/05/2003. 
EPF/1295/03 Front boundary wall railings and gates (revised application to EPF/406/03 

with amended gates). Grant Permission – 22/08/03. 
EPF/0249/04 Two storey front extension and detached garage. Withdrawn - 05/04/2004. 
EPF/0773/04 Two storey front extension and detached garage. (Revised application). 

Grant Permission (with conditions) - 08/06/2004. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1  Achieving Sustainable Development Objectives 
CP2  Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment 
CP3  New Development 
CP4  Energy Conservation 
CP5  Sustainable Building  
CP6  Achieving Sustainable Urban Development Patterns 
CP7  Urban Form and Quality 
DBE1  Design of New Buildings 
DBE2  Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
DBE3  Design in Urban Areas 
DBE8  Private Amenity Space 
DBE9  Excessive Loss of Amenity to Neighbouring Properties 
ST1  Location of Development 
ST2  Accessibility of Development  
ST4  Road Safety 
ST6  Vehicle Parking 
H2A  Previously Developed Land 
H3A  Housing Density  
H4A  Dwelling Mix 
LL10  Landscaping Schemes  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
10 neighbours consulted – 6 replies received. 
 
2 Lee Grove: Objection. The building is in close proximity to the other dwellings and will cause 
overlooking and a loss of privacy.  
 
4 Lee Grove: Objection. Loss of privacy and overlooking of our property. The building will appear 
bulky and overbearing. This proposal will alter the character of the street.  
 
17 Chigwell Rise: Strong objection. Our objections are based on several points, the first of which is 
the consideration of our property in the projections offered for planning. Whilst we understand that 
when usually providing an application for a detached house on a plot of land, the proposed 
drawings simply need to apply to the plot in question, we feel that given the proximity to our 
property and the fact that the existing property on the plot next door will we remain, this is not 
sufficient in this case. Secondly, the west side elevation of the proposed house (adjacent to our 
property) shows one window on the first floor, which if the leylandii trees are removed as per the 
Site Plan document states, would mean that our property is directly overlooked. Furthermore, the 
proposed house itself would block all light coming into the windows that we have on that side of 

Page 58



our house and also block a proportion of the morning light coming into our rear garden. Lastly, 
there is no accurate representation of the front elevation of the proposed structure in comparison 
to the existing structures to fully portray the effect on the natural lighting received by our house 
and garden. I would also question what sort of fencing/brickwork the proposed property will have 
at the front and what this would potentially look like alongside ours and that of #15. As the Street 
Scene is only a proposed view of how the street may look and therefore inaccurate in both 
dimensions and elevations (as noted at the top right of all documents), we find it inconceivable that 
approval could be issued without further due diligence in this matter. 
 
24 Chigwell Rise: Objection. The existing gap is a well planned vista. It would be a pity if our area 
was despoiled by the cramming in of this dwelling.  
 
34 Chigwell Rise: Objection. The proposed house will appear very small in comparison with the 
other properties along Chigwell Rise. To squeeze a small dwelling in would be out of character. 
 
46 Chigwell Rise: Objection. This proposal would not be in keeping with the road. The area is 
getting rather built up and this is people simply speculating to make a quick profit.  
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: No Objection.   
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this application are: 
 

6. Context/Design  
7. Neighbours Amenity 
8. Landscaping  
9. Parking/Road Safety  

 
Context/Design 
 
The proposed development would make better use of urban land in a sustainable location. The 
dwelling would be in character with the development along the road and as such would not be 
contrary to government changes to Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3) which aims to guard 
against so called “garden grabbing”.  
 
Chigwell Rise is characterised by relatively large dwellings which use the majority of the width of 
the plot. In this regard No15 Chigwell Rise is something of an oddity in the generosity of space. 
Amble space is available either side of the dwelling. The proposed dwelling could be comfortably 
accommodated to the west of the existing house. Adequate gaps could be retained to the 
boundaries on either side. A number of objectors have stated that the proposed house, due to its 
size, would appear out of place. However dwellings of a similar size are evident along both 
Chigwell Rise and on Lee Grove, the residential street running behind the site. This proposal 
would be a seamless addition to the streetscene.  
 
This proposal would provide approximately 155 sq m of private amenity space. Policy DBE8 
requires that new development provides 20 sq m of private amenity space per habitable room and 
this requirement is met. This is located at the rear and would remain sufficiently private. No15 
Chigwell Rise would also be left with sufficient, useable amenity space.  
 
Chigwell Rise contains a mix of dwelling styles. Therefore there is no dominant style to conform to. 
The proposed design is conventional and raises no issues. The use of hanging tile is also evident 
on neighbouring houses. The staggered front elevation steps out the building line from No15 to the 
adjacent neighbour No17. The use of suitable materials can be agreed by condition.  
 

Page 59



Neighbour Amenity 
 
The proposed structure would be bordered on three sides by residential properties. The host 
dwelling, No15, has a number of side facing windows which would suffer some loss of light. 
However they are secondary windows serving bedrooms so any impact is negligible. Rear facing 
windows would be unaffected and the proposed building would not appear overbearing.  
 
The neighbour to the west, No17, has no side facing windows and rear facing windows would be 
unaffected. The existing screen of Conifer trees is to be removed, however the proposal would still 
have no material impact on the amenities of residents of this property.  
 
There are a number of properties bordering the rear of the site and concern has been expressed 
about overlooking. The gap of 25.0m between rear facing elevations complies with the Essex 
Design Guides recommended standards. The house would form one of a row of conventional 
dwellings and it is not considered that overlooking would be any greater than the current scenario 
between dwellings on Chigwell Rise and Lee Grove. A heavy screen exists along the rear 
boundary which would further guard against excessive overlooking or loss of privacy.   
 
The proposed flank elevation windows at first floor level can be reasonably conditioned as obscure 
glazed.  
 
Landscaping  
 
There are no significant trees on or adjacent to this site. A condition agreeing hard and soft 
landscaping is deemed appropriate.  
 
Parking/Road Safety  
 
There is adequate space for the parking of vehicles to the front of both the existing dwelling and 
the proposed house which would be compliant with current Essex County Council standards. 
There already is an existing access to the plot with very good visibility splays.  
 
Conclusion:  
 
The proposed development would provide additional housing with no serious impact on either the 
appearance of the area or neighbour amenity. As there are no issues to determine otherwise this 
proposal is recommended for approval with conditions.  
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

14

1 5

1 1

1 5

2 7

6

12

2

3

26

20

2 5

39

38

1 3

Highwood

1
2

L EE G R O V E

LE E  GR OV E

C HI GWE LL R I S E

L E
E  

G
R O

V
E

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 
Application Number: EPF/1699/11 
Site Name: 15 Chigwell Rise, Chigwell, IG7 

6AQ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 61



Report Item No 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1732/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Lingmere 

Vicarage Lane 
Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6LQ 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Martin Higgins 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of four detached 
dwellings, conversion of existing Coach House to a dwelling. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=530629 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 1191.4 Rev. A, 1191.5 Rev. A, 1191.6, 1191.7,  1208/07, 
1208/09B (amended plan received 13 October 2011), and the following amended 
plan nos. 1208/01Q, 1208/02h, 1208/03h, 1208/04f, 1208/05G, 1208/06k and 
1208/08B (Amended plans received 19 October 2011). Together with the supporting 
Design and Access Statement (August 2011 revised 12/08/11) and Great Crested 
Newt and Reptile surveys report date 10 July 2010 
 
 

3 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the following proposed 
window opening(s) shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames 
to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed 
and shall be permanently in that condition. 
i)Plot 1, first floor flank south-east flank elevation  
ii) Plot 3, first floor flank east and west flank elevation(s)  
iii) Plot 4, first and second floor east and west flank elevation(s)  
iv) Plot 5, first floor east and west flank elevation(s)  

Page 62



and the existing window opening in  
v) Plot 2, first floor front (west) elevation. 
 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s) hereby approved (Plots 1 to 5) 
shall be retained so that they are capable of allowing the parking of cars together 
with any ancillary storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall 
at no time be converted into a room or used for any other purpose. 
 
 

6 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any 
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present 
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland 
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, 
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 
 

7 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 
 

8 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 

Page 63



scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 
 

9 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report 
(referred to in PPS23 as a Validation Report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of 
the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary 
monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes 
relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall 
be implemented.   
 

10 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

11 Prior to first occupation of the development the vehicular accesses shall be 
constructed at right angles to the highway boundary and to the existing carriageway. 
The width of the accesses at the junction with the highway shall not be less than 3.6 
metres and shall all be provided with an appropriate dropped kerb vehicular crossing 
of the footway.  
 
 

12 Prior to commencement of the development details showing the means to prevent 
the discharge of surface water from the development onto the highway shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
scheme shall be carried out in its entirety prior to the access becoming operational 
and shall be retained at all times.  
 

13 No unbound material shall be used in the surface treatment of the vehicular access 
within 6 metres of the highway boundary.  
 

14 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details. 
 

15 A flood risk assessment and management and maintenance plan shall be submitted 
to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement of 
development. The assessment shall include calculations of increased run-off and 

Page 64



associated volume of storm detention using WinDes or other similar best practice 
tools. The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the substantial 
completion of the development and shall be adequately maintained in accordance 
with the management and maintenance plan. 
 
 

16 At least 48 hours prior notice shall be given to the Archaeological Advisory Group of 
Essex County Council of the date works will be commenced on this site or any part 
thereof, and persons authorised shall be afforded access for inspection of the site, 
and for carrying out works of excavation for the purpose of recording any features 
thereon of historical or archaeological significance. 
 
 

17 Access to the flat roof areas of the approved dwellings Plot 3, 4, and 5, shall be for 
maintenance or emergency purposes only and the flat roof shall not be used as a 
seating area, roof garden, terrace, patio or similar amenity area.  No furniture, 
including tables and chairs, shall be placed on the flat roof. 
 
 

18 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garage(s) hereby approved shall be retained 
so that it is capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary 
storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be 
converted into a room or used for any other purpose. 
 
 

19 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class E shall be undertaken within Plot 1 and Plot 5 without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

20 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class A, B and C shall be undertaken to any of the approved dwelling(s) 
contained within Plot 1 to Plot 5, without the prior written permission of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

21 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with 
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 

22 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 

Page 65



finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 
 

23 If any tree, shrub or hedge shown to be retained in accordance with the approved 
plans and particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes 
severely damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, 
another tree, shrub or hedge of the same size and species shall be planted within 3 
months at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. If within a period of five years from the date of planting any 
replacement tree, shrub or hedge is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree, shrub or hedge of the same 
species and size as that originally planted shall, within 3 months, be planted at the 
same place. 
 
 

24 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

25 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: 
 
1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials 
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction 
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works. 
 

 
 
 

Page 66



This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
This proposal is to demolish an existing one and a half storey detached house, replace it with four 
detached dwellings and to convert an existing former coach house into a separate dwelling with 
associated works. The coach house building is presently used as an outbuilding in connection with 
the existing house. 
 
The size of the proposed dwellings, are summarised as follows: 
 
House 1 - A one and a half storey, 4-bed cottage style dwelling. Its access is the existing access 
off Vicarage Lane. Its appearance is a double gabled façade with a small, central dormer. It will be 
7.2 metres high and its plan footprint measures 14.8 metres deep by 13.0 metres. 
 
House 2 – This will be fashioned from the existing coach house that directly fronts onto Vicarage 
Lane. It is an elongated, timber clad building and it presently serves as ancillary accommodation to 
the main dwelling. This will be retained and converted into a one and a half storey, 3 bed dwelling. 
Its fenestration will be improved with new windows and roof lights to the bedroom at first floor 
level. The only addition will be a 2.2 metre deep by 6.0 metre wide extension to the west elevation 
of the building. This will provide the double garage for House 1. The height of the building is 5.6 
metre high and its plan footprint 22.2 metres wide by 7.4 metres deep. 
 
House 3 – This property will appear as a two and a half storey dwelling with a double integral 
garage. It is designed with a central dormer above a small portico entrance flanked by double 
storey front projections. The building will be 8.9 metres high and the plan footprint will be 14.1 
metre deep by 17.6 metres wide. It will have its access off Lingmere Close and fronts onto 
Lingmere Close.   
  
House 4 – This property will be a two and a half storey, 6 bed dwelling with a double integral 
garage. Its façade will have gable ends with 3, front facing dormers. It will be 9.5 metres high and 
its plan footprint measures 17.6 metres wide by 13.6 deep. This property will front onto Lingmere 
Close and its access will be off Lingmere Close. 
  
House 5 - This site will accommodate a two and a half storey, 6-bed dwelling with a single integral 
garage. Its access will be off Lingmere Close. From the street its façade adopts 2, front facing 
dormers positioned to the side of a double storey front projection. It will be 8.6 metres high and its 
plan footprint will be 14.2 wide by 17.0 metres deep. 
  
Description of Site: 
 
The application site comprises approximately 0.5 hectare of land sited at the western corner of 
Vicarage Lane and north of Lingmere Close. Lingmere Close is a small cul de sac with 4 detached 
properties. The site is bordered by residential developments to the south and west, and open fields 
to the east and north. The plot of land is located on the edge of the built up area of Chigwell 
village. Although the Chigwell conservation area lies to the immediate north of the plot, the site is 
not within the Conservation area boundary.  
 
The buildings that occupy the site are presently a detached, red brick built one and a half storey ‘L’ 
plan shaped building. There is also an associated detached building historically used as a coach 
house, it is rendered with timber cladding and immediately fronts onto Vicarage Lane.  
 

Page 67



The site is heavily treed and contains several TPO trees. The north and eastern boundary is within 
the Green Belt however, the site does not lie within the Green belt. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0714/10 Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of five detached dwellings. Coach 

House to be retained for ancillary accommodation. Withdrawn 
 
EPF/2678/10 Demolition of existing dwelling and erection of five detached dwellings. Coach 

House to be retained for ancillary accommodation. (Revised application). Refused 
for the following reasons. 

 
1. The siting and location of proposed dwelling house Nos. 2, 3, 4 and 5, due to their overall size, 
height, bulk and proximity to their corresponding boundaries, would result in a cramped form of 
development detrimental to the character and appearance of the area. 
 
2. By reason of its siting and scale, House 2 would appear in sharp contrast to an important 
element of the character of the locality: its open or landscaped frontage to Vicarage Lane.  That 
contrast would detract from the character and appearance of the locality and underscore the 
cramped appearance of the development as a whole. 
 
3. The proposed House No. 2, as a result of its height and siting, will appear prominent when seen 
from adjacent land in the Green Belt, particularly if existing trees adjacent to the site boundary are 
significantly reduced in height or removed. As such it will result in development conspicuous from 
the Green Belt that detracts from its visual amenities. 
 
4. The size and layout of the proposed building within the curtilage of House No. 2 and position of 
the proposed vehicle and pedestrian access into this site would put undue stress on nearby trees 
that would be harmful to their future viability. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB7A  Conspicuous development in the green belt 
CP1  Protecting the quality of the built environment 
CP2-CP5 Sustainable design/ building objectives 
CP7    Urban Form and Quality 
DBE1    Design of New Buildings 
DBE2    Effect of New Buildings on surroundings 
DBE3/ DBE5 Design and layout of new development in urban areas 
DBE6  Car parking in new development 
DBE8    Provision of Private Amenity Space 
DBE9    Amenity Considerations 
H2A   Residential Development on Previously Developed Land 
H3A   Housing Density 
ST1    Location of Development 
ST2    Accessibility of Development 
ST4   Highway safety 
ST6    Vehicle parking 
NC4/ NC5  Protecting Established Habitats of Local Interest 
LL10   Protecting Landscape Features 
LL11   Adequate Landscaping 
 
 

Page 68



SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
8 letters were sent out to neighbouring occupiers and a site notice displayed at the front of the site 
and the following letters of representation have been received. 
 
2 LINGMERE CLOSE – Objects because of the impact on the existing housing in the area and 
traffic concerns. Proposal will result in overdevelopment of the site and as such it is out of 
character and will be detrimental within the street scene. Plot 2 will be smaller than every other 
property. It has no garage and very little garden.  An entrance immediately adjacent to the junction 
is proposed for Plot 2. There is not enough room to allow cars to turn around within the site. This 
will force vehicles to reverse and this is a highway safety concern.  
 
If consent is however approved, the applicant through a Section 106 and Planning Conditions 
should pay for the cost to upgrade the existing pipe work for the sewage and water. The applicant 
should also pay for the cost to re-surface the entire road surface and pavement of Lingmere Close. 
Existing access from Lingmere should also be used for all construction traffic. 
 
3 LINGMERE CLOSE – Strong objection on grounds that in broad terms, the existing dwellings 
that front onto Lingmere are of a similar size and footprint. The proposed houses are of a smaller 
footprint and different design. The street scene will become imbalanced. The proposal will see an 
overdevelopment of the site adversely affecting the character of the area to a significant and 
unacceptable degree. Proposal is too cramped and is not in keeping with existing houses. Impact 
on traffic generation. If consent is however approved, the applicant through a Section 106 should 
re-surface the entire road surface and pavement of Lingmere Close. All construction traffic should 
be through Vicarage Lane and ‘not’ Lingmere Close Proposal should have been discussed with 
the existing residents of Lingmere Close prior to submitting the application. 
 
THE END HOUSE, 4 LINGMERE CLOSE – No objection to the three new houses proposed in 
Lingmere Close. However, would like the developer to upgrade the existing pipe work for the 
sewage and water. The applicant should also pay for the cost to re-surface the entire road surface 
and pavement of Lingmere Close. Existing access from Lingmere should also be used for all 
construction traffic. The increase traffic is also of great concern.  
 
5 LINGMERE CLOSE – Raise concern on a number of issues, principal bedroom windows at first 
and second floor of plot 3 and 4 will have a line of sight to patio and rear facing master bedroom. 
This will reduce their level of privacy. On plot No. 2 there is insufficient space for vehicles to turn 
within the site and leave in forward gear. Potential increase in highway safety and ongoing parking 
issues within Lingmere Close.   
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL – The Council OBJECTS to this application unless the developer 
can reach agreement for the resurfacing of the highway and replacement of drainage.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues raised by this proposal are the appropriateness of the new housing development 
at this location, its design and appearance, effect on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and 
impact on highway safety. Also considered is the effect on the local wildlife, the wider landscape 
and protected trees. 
 
In addition, because this application has previously been refused it will need to be considered 
whether this revised scheme has overcome the reasons from the previous refusal. 
 
 
 

Page 69



Sustainability of the sites location 
 
The application site is on the edge of the Chigwell urban area it is within walking distance of 
Chigwell High Road and Chigwell Underground Station. There is a frequent bus route that serves 
the High Road. Given the proximity to the adjoining fields, it is also very close to public open 
space.  
 
The application site is in a sustainable, urban location and is classed as previously developed 
Brownfield land. The principle for a housing development at this site is therefore acceptable. 
 
Density – amount of development  
 
National planning policy seeks new housing development at a density of between 30 and 40 
dwellings/hectare, however, where the established character of a locality is of more spacious 
development a lower density of 8-15 dwellings per hectare can be acceptable.  Policy H3A allows 
for lower densities depending on “the size and shape of the site, including any significant heritage, 
landscape or wildlife features”. 
 
At this site the proposed four new dwellings with the additional dwelling that will be converted from 
the coach house will provide less than 10 dwellings per hectare.  Having regard to the generally 
low density of development in the locality, the density proposed is considered to be appropriate 
making more efficient use of the land while respecting the character of the locality. 
 
Scale, layout and siting of new development 
 
For new development, the scale and layout will usually be required to conform to the existing 
street pattern. The Councils policies do not support a radical deviation from the general building 
line. Small deviations may however be a useful design feature depending on the existing layout of 
the street. Characteristic features at upper floor levels and articulation of the roof form, may also 
be incorporated in order to achieve an acceptable design. 
 
Lingmere Close is a small cul de sac with only 4 dwellings. The character of the area is individually 
styled buildings set in wide, spacious plots and the layout of the street is a curved sweeping 
pattern. Within Lingmere Close all the properties are detached, double storey and some of these 
provide accommodation within the roof. 
 
The layout proposed for House 3, 4 and 5 amounts to a continuation of the curved, sweeping 
pattern of development. The siting of the new buildings that will front onto Lingmere Close is 
slightly staggered and the design and scale of the buildings will vary to complement the existing 
street. The articulation of the roofs will add variety to the street and as a consequence, the overall 
built form will compliment the area. The retention of the substantive tree screening will serve to 
soften the appearance from the street. 
 
When seen from Lingmere Close and Vicarage Lane variation in building heights, scale and siting 
will be apparent giving variety and interest and serving to prevent a cramped appearance. This 
design overcomes reasons 1 and 2  for refusing the previous proposal. 
 
Design and appearance 
 
Policy DBE1 and DBE2 of the Local Plan requires new development to be of a good design that 
respects their settings in terms of scale, proportion, siting and massing. 
 
The concept for these new buildings is such that they adopt traditional features in their design 
approach. These are typified by their hip and half hipped roof form that will fit in with the vernacular 
of the area. External finishes would be facing brick work, plain tiles roofs and timber frames for the 

Page 70



doors and windows. The proposed dwellings houses are modern in many respects and some have 
been designed with small pitched roof dormers together with other architectural design features 
that will result in an attractive frontage to the buildings façade.  
 
The proposed cottage style dwelling House 1 is acceptable in size, design and its appearance. 
The proposed dwellings Nos. 3, 4 and 5 have been reduced and will appear more in keeping with 
the existing street pattern.  
 
Paragraph 15.69 of the Local Plan requires a minimum gap of 1.0 metre between each detached 
dwelling house to its side boundary. House 3, 4 and 5 are all sited a minimum 1.0 metre from each 
corresponding side boundary. The single storey garage serves to reduce the bulk, size and scale 
of the houses.  
 
Conspicuous development from the green belt 
 
The plot lies to the south and west corner of the Green Belt. The site will be visible from an open 
area of Green belt to the north. The site is also clearly visible from a nearby public footpath east of 
Vicarage Lane.  
 
The Council will not allow conspicuous development from within or beyond the green belt which 
would have an excessive adverse impact upon the openness of the Green Belt. 
 
With the previous proposal, a new dwelling would have been sited on the corner of Vicarage Lane 
and Lingmere Close. This has been revised and omitted from the scheme. With this revised 
proposal, the most prominent new dwelling from the Green belt will be House 1 (The converted 
former coach house is know as House 2 in this proposal), which fronts onto Vicarage Lane. This 
property has been designed to appear as a cottage style dwelling with a lowered ridge and a more 
compact built form. House 3 the house immediately east of Vicarage Lane will be hidden in part by 
a tree on the corner of the plot. As a consequence of the revision, the proposal will not appear 
visibly conspicuous from the Green belt, thereby overcoming the third reason for refusal of the 
previous proposal.  
 
Private amenity space provision and amenity of immediate neighbouring occupiers  
 
The private amenity space each of the 5 new dwellings provides is as follows,  
 
House 1 – (4, bed) 573 m2  
House 2 – (3, bed) 170m2  
House 3 – (6, bed) 320 m2;  
House 4 – (6, bed) 397m2  
House 5 – (6, bed) 483m2  
 
The Councils policy expects rear gardens of new dwellings to have a minimum area of 20 square 
metres per habitable room in order to provide a reasonable area of outside amenity space. From 
the siting and layout of the new dwellings, each property will provide excess of the prescribed 
minimum. The private amenity space for all the dwellings is acceptable and will fit in with the scale 
and character of the area. 
 
The neighbouring properties that will be most affected by the proposal will be dwellings in 
Lingmere Close. The properties closest to the site are No. 1 Lingmere Close and Brimure, which 
front onto Vicarage Lane.  
 
The siting of House 5 will be a minimum 3.0 metres from the house at No. 1 Lingmere. There are 
several TPO trees along the boundary and this substantive attractive soft landscape feature that 
will be retained will to a great degree screen views of the proposed house from their view.  

Page 71



 
The closest building to Brimure will be sited some 16 metres from their rear garden fence. With 
new landscape features, this property will not be overlooked. 
 
The siting of the new buildings has been carefully considered. The objections received from the 
occupiers of Lingmere Close have been taken into account and their grounds of objection 
considered in detail but it has been found that the siting, position and scale of the new buildings 
are such that no loss of light, outlook or privacy would be caused to the neighbouring occupiers.  
 
Landscaping 
 
There are a number of mature trees and hedgerows on the site. Several trees within the site have 
been recently been made the subject of a TPO. For this reason, there are significant landscaping 
implications for this site. The revised scheme has made considerable efforts to safeguard soft 
landscape features within the site and will also provide additional tree screening within the 
development to safeguard the amenity of the new House 1. On that basis the proposal overcomes 
the final reason for refusing the previous proposal. 
 
In order to safeguard existing landscaping and provide sufficient screening for this development, 
any approval should include a landscape condition.   
 
Effect on nearby Conservation Area 
 
This site is set adjacent the Chigwell Village Conservation Area.  Substantial greening on the north 
and western boundaries of this proposal will soften the impact of this new development in the 
landscape and enhance the screening that affords to this Conservation Area.  As such, the 
Conservation Officer does not wish to raise any objections to this proposal as it will preserve the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
Contaminated Land 
 
The site has been identified as potentially contaminated due to the presence of an in-filled lake 
and man made ground. Any grant of planning permission should therefore have a phased land 
contamination investigation; this can be secured by a condition. 
  
Land Drainage 
 
The Land drainage officer does not wish to raise an objection because the site is not within a flood 
risk zone and no foul or surface water drainage is required. The size of the proposed development 
is such that it is necessary to avoid additional surface runoff. This can be secured with a planning 
condition. 
  
Archaeological Implications of this site 
 
The Historic Environment Management Team of Essex County Council has identified the site as 
having archaeological implications. Given the nature and scale of the proposals, this is the last 
chance to record the development of the site and to ‘preserve by record’ those structures targeted 
for demolition. In view of this, a condition will be made with the grant of planning approval in line 
with Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment  
 
Parking and Highway safety  
 
The new dwellings will each have one or two garage(s) and in addition, parking bays at the front 
for off street parking. The provision of garages is an appropriate design-led solution to the 

Page 72



provision of car parking and other storage needs which are likely to be associated with large family 
houses. Therefore this level of parking provision is acceptable. 
 
The neighbours have raised objections on grounds that the proposal will raise highway safety 
concerns and exacerbate the parking situation. Although this development would result in more 
cars using the site, this will not result in harm to highway safety. The Highway Authority does not 
raise an objection to this scheme, subject to conditions.  
 
It is also noted the comments received from neighbours request possible financial contributions 
should be secured from the developer/ applicant.  A financial contribution towards roadway/ 
pavement improvements at Lingmere Close is not necessary or reasonable for this type of 
development because of the small number of dwellings proposed and consequently no such 
contributions are sought by the Highway Authority. 
 
Other considerations 
 
On the issue of possible contributions for this site for highway improvement and drainage, since 
the size of the plot is under 0.5 hectares it falls short of the size that would trigger a requirement 
for such contributions to be made. In addition, the number of dwellings proposed falls significantly 
short of the threshold for seeking contributions. 
 
A number of neighbours in Lingmere and the Parish Council have raised objections on grounds 
that the applicant/ developer should improve the drainage and resurface the roadway of Lingmere 
Close and its footpath.  Such a requirement would not be reasonably related in scale to the 
proposed development and is not demonstrably necessary for the development to be carried out.  
Moreover, the provision of foul water drainage is not a planning matter in this case and the matter 
of surface water drainage can be adequately dealt with by planning conditions as described above.  
Consequently a decision to give consent subject to a requirement that such financial contributions 
be secured through a Section 106 agreement would be unlawful.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
This proposal to redevelop this site to provide four new dwellings and to convert the existing 
former coach house into a separate dwelling is acceptable as part of a comprehensive 
development of this site. The layout, scale and siting will compliment and fit in with the character 
and appearance of the locality.  
 
The proposal overcomes the reasons for the previous refusal and despite objections and concerns 
raised by neighbours and this has been addressed in the body of this report; the proposal 
complies with relevant Local Plan policies. It is therefore recommended for approval with 
conditions.  
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Ms Paula Onyia 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564103 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 73



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

53.6m

60.4m

D u n t o n  H o u s e
L i t t l e

 O r c h a r d

5 6

Vicarage Cottage

1

Lingmere

B r i m
u r e

5 0

El
Sub Sta

4

L A N E

V I C A R A G E

L I N G M E R E  C L O S E

Te n n i s C o u r ts

P a t h
 ( u m

)

P a t h

Path (um)

Dr ain

Pond

D ra inEFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 
Application Number: EPF/1732/11 
Site Name: Lingmere, Vicarage Lane, Chigwell, 

IG7 6LQ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 74



Report Item No 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1745/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 1 Pudding Lane  

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6BY 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Row 
 

APPLICANT: Mr H Rana 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed attached garage extension to side of property with 
construction of new front boundary wall with piers and metal 
railings, with installation of new entrance gates. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Refuse Permission  (Householder) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=530694 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 
 
 

1 The proposal is within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  The gates and railings would 
result in a development which, by reason of the height and design would be a 
visually intrusive development, which would have an urbanising affect, detrimental to 
the character and appearance of the Green Belt. The proposed development is 
therefore at odds with Government advice and policies DBE4 and GB7A of the 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.  

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since it would otherwise have been refused under 
delegated powers by the Director of Planning and Economic Development, but there is support 
from the relevant local Parish/Town Council and no other overriding planning consideration 
necessitates refusal (Pursuant to The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation 
of Council function, Schedule 1, Appendix A.(l)) 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is a revised application to extend a dwelling over one storey on the south west facing 
flank elevation in order to create an attached garage. This would have a hipped roof and a floor 
area of 12.0m x 3.1m. It is also proposed to erect metal railings, piers and in/out sliding gates, to a 
height of 1.8m along the front boundary. These would extend for a distance of 16.0m.  
 

Page 75



Description of Site: 
 
The dwelling is a detached two storey building bordered by a similar property on the south west 
boundary. There are no adjacent neighbours on the other sides. The property is located just off 
Pudding Lane on the entrance laneway to a water treatment works. The site is within the 
boundaries of The Metropolitan Green Belt.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
CHI/0377/64 2 staff houses. Grant permission (with conditions) - 16/12/1964. 
CHI/0377/64 removal of restriction limiting occupation to persons essential to operating 

water treatment works. Grant Permission - 20/07/1987. 
EPF/1418/07 Demolition of existing garage and conservatory and erection of a two storey 

side extension. Grant Permission (With Conditions) - 20/08/2007. 
EPF/1365/09 Proposed two storey pitched roof side extension and single storey pitched 

roof rear extension, ancillary internal alterations and demolition of existing 
conservatory. Grant Permission (With Conditions) – 10/09/09. 

EPF/0985/11 Proposed attached garage extension to side of property with construction of 
new front boundary wall with piers and metal railings, with installation of new 
entrance gates. Refuse Permission  (Householder) - 15/07/2011. 

EPF/1754/11 Retention of rear two storey extension projecting 4 metres at ground floor 
level and 3 metres at first floor level. Approved 17/10/2011.  

 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment. 
DBE1  New Buildings.  
DBE4  Design in the Green Belt. 
DBE9  Loss of Amenity. 
DBE10  Design of Residential Extensions. 
GB2A  Development in the Green Belt. 
GB7A  Conspicuous Development. 
ST4  Road Safety. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
Site Notice Displayed and 1 neighbour Consulted – No Replies Received. 
 
Chigwell Parish Council: Support.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider are impact on the Green Belt, neighbour amenity and the design of 
the extension in relation to the building and its setting. The impact of the boundary treatment on 
road safety and the Green Belt will be assessed. 
 
 
GARAGE EXTENSION: 
 
Green Belt Considerations 
 
The property is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt where limited extensions to dwellings 
are permissible. The original floor space of the building amounts to 155.52 sq m. Increases in the 
size of the dwelling approved under permission EPF/1365/09, and which included the removal of 
the original garage, amounted to 50 sq m or a 32% increase over the original building. A two 

Page 76



storey extension erected at the rear of the building was approved under planning permission 
EPF/1754/11.  It added a further 35.0 sq m to the original floor space and is not much more than 
what could be constructed under permitted development.  The cumulative increase approved 
under both permissions has resulted in the floor space of the original house being increased by 
58%. 
 
The proposed garage would add another 34.5 sq m to the house. This would result in total 
additions over the original building of 120.5 sq m or a 77% increase. Although this would result in 
an overall disproportionate enlargement of the original house, the vast majority of this proposed 
single storey side addition would also be permitted development.  Consequently the applicant has 
a reasonable fallback position that would have a very similar impact on the Green Belt.  The 
existence of that particular fall back position and particularly constitutes very special 
circumstances that render the proposed extension acceptable in this case.  
 
Design 
 
The design of the garage extension is fairly conventional and raises no issues.  
 
Amenity 
 
The garage extension would be located between the existing dwelling and the common boundary 
with No2 Pudding Lane. However it would have no serious impact on amenity.  
 
 
BOUNDARY ENCLOSURE: 
 
Highway Safety 
 
The proposed enclosure would have no impact on road safety. Motorists could enter and exit in a 
forward gear and on to an accessway with very limited traffic. Therefore there would be no safety 
concerns.   
 
Design/Green Belt  
 
The proposed railing, piers and fence would measure 1.8m at the highest point and would be 
erected along the entire front boundary (16.0m). The only neighbouring dwelling, No2, has a 
boundary treatment which consists of an approximately 1.0m high post and rail fence. By contrast 
the proposed boundary treatment is urban in nature. Despite being adjacent to a water treatment 
works the site retains its rural nature and is in a relatively open location and does not form part of a 
ribbon development. Given the fact that there are two entrance gates, and having regard to the 
proposed landscaping, only approximately 33% of the boundary treatment would be softened by 
vegetation. The railings and piers would have a detrimental impact on the character of the 
countryside at this location and would compromise openness. Notwithstanding the wire, link fence 
around the water treatment plant it would appear out of character. Taking in the context of the 
adjacent neighbour and nearby hedgerows the boundary treatment would have a suburban 
character. Although a more traditional rural finish of, for example, post and rail fencing would be 
preferred having regard to permitted development regulations a similar structure which measured 
1.4m at its highest point would be acceptable.  
 
The applicant has supplied a supporting statement with reasoning for this proposal. This states a 
need for greater security for this property. Crime prevention is recognised as a material planning 
consideration. However it remains one of a number of material planning considerations pertinent to 
this application. Design in the Green Belt, as outlined in local plan policy DBE4, is also a relevant 
consideration. This outlines that development within the Green Belt should respect its location and 
the wider landscape, and use traditional detailing. As stated there are more traditional forms of 

Page 77



enclosure which could be used. While the need for security is recognised, given the weight of 
other material planning considerations this proposal is inappropriate. As stated above, Officers 
advice, having regard to a fall back position of a 1m high enclosure allowed under permitted 
development rights, a 1.4m high enclosure is likely to be an acceptable height for a suitably 
designed means of enclosure. Such an alternative design would still provide adequate security at 
this property.  
 
The applicant has also provided a photo montage of examples of boundary enclosures in the area 
which it is claimed justify this proposal in its current form. The fencing and gates around the water 
works have evidently been in place for some time. A number of photographic examples have also 
been provided of boundary treatments further along Pudding Lane. The history of these properties 
has been checked and these seem to have evidently been in place for some time, or do not benefit 
from a planning consent. In any case these structures were not judged under current local plan 
policies.  
 
Conclusion:  
 
The proposed side extension is deemed acceptable. The boundary treatment is considered 
excessively high and would have an urbanising impact on the Metropolitan Green Belt. For this 
reason it is recommended that the application is refused.  
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Dominic Duffin 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564336 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

75.9m

El Sub Sta

1

2

P U DDIN G  L AN E

T ra c k

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

8 
Application Number: EPF/1745/11 
Site Name: 1 Pudding Lane, Chigwell, IG7 6BY 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 79



Report Item No 9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1857/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 20 Lechmere Avenue 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5ET 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Y Kanzaria  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=531103 
 
CONDITIONS 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Permission is sought to erect a single storey rear extension.  
 
It will be 4.0 deep by 6.05 metres wide by with a 3.5 metres high mono-pitch sloping tiled roof. The 
external materials will be facing brick and tile that will match the existing building.  
 
Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is located to the west of Lechmere Avenue. The site is a rectangular plan shaped 
and accommodates a detached 1950s two-storey dwelling. The properties on this side of the street 
are built to a roughly similar front building line.  
 
Relevant History: 
 

Page 80



ENF/0269/11 Outbuilding close to boundary over 2.5m high. 
 
EPF/1470/87 Two storey side and single storey rear extensions. Approved 
 
EPF/0765/02 Retention of garage conversion to study and WC, together with single storey side 

extension. Approved 
 
EPF/1555/11 Retain a single storey rear extension. Refused 
 
Adopted Policies: 
 
CP2  Protecting the quality of the built environment 
DBE 9  Neighbour Amenity 
DBE10  Design/appearance 
 
Representation 
 
4 neighbours were sent letters concerning details of this application and the following responses 
were received. 
 
Chigwell Parish Council – The Council OBJECTS to this application as it gathers it is a 
retrospective application which is to alter further on the first extension consent, it is 
overdevelopment. The circumstances sufficiently concern the committee to request that planning 
application EPF/1555/11 and this application go before District Development Control. 
  
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issue is whether the proposal will have a detrimental impact upon the locality and/or the 
amenities of residents living in the vicinity of the site. 
 
Design and appearance within the street scene 
 
This application seeks planning permission to demolish the existing single storey rear extension 
and conservatory and replace it will be a single storey brick built extension. The height, scale, form 
and size of the proposed single storey rear extension is acceptable. 
 
The Parish Council have objected to this scheme on grounds of overdevelopment. The site retains 
adequate amenity space at the rear as such this is not considered to be an overdevelopment of 
this site and does not justify a refusal on this basis. 
 
From a site inspection it can also be confirmed this part of the development has not commenced. 
The extension to be demolished and present conservatory remains as the existing plans show.  
 
The block plan is inaccurate because No. 22 has no previous extension and this extension will 
project 4.0 metre beyond the line of its original rear wall. Despite this inaccuracy, it will not alter the 
decision. 
 
Finally, with respect to the comments from the parish on planning application EPF/155/11, this 
application has been refused although it is subject to an ongoing enforcement investigation. 
 
This proposal is for the single storey rear extension only. It is acceptable in design and 
appearance and it will be seen from the street.  
 
 
 

Page 81



Neighbours amenity 
 
The immediate neighbouring occupiers to the subject site are adjacent properties Nos. 18 and 22 
Lechmere Avenue and neither of these neighbours has written with concerns about the proposal.  
 
The extension will see a 1.0 metre gap retained from the boundary with adjacent site No. 22. 
Whilst No. 22 has not been extended rearwards the extension will not easily be seen because 
there is a high hedge on the boundary with this property.  
 
Also, because the proposal is for a single storey extension, it provides an acceptable setback from 
this property and its depth at 4.0 metre is acceptable. There will be no loss of light, overshadowing 
or harm caused to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.  
 
Conclusion: 
 
For the reasons above, this application is acceptable because it will not result in visual harm to the 
character of the area and it will not harm neighbouring occupier’s amenity. As such it is 
recommended for approval and complies with plan policies CP2, DBE9 and DBE10 of this 
Councils Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Ms Paula Onyia 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564103 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 82



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 68.6m

68.0m

1 4 2

14

18

28

1 9

1 4 6

95

10
1

1 4 0

2

12

1

1 3 0

38 2 9

28

24

132

1 5

H
A IN

A U
L T  R O

A D

L ECH
M

ERE AVEN
U

E

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

9 
Application Number: EPF/1857/11 
Site Name: 20 Lechmere Avenue, Chigwell, IG7 

5ET 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 83



Report Item No 10 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1895/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 49 Lee Grove 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6AD 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mr David Shternzis  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Extension of time limit on EPF/2097/08 (Erection of iron 
railings to existing brick boundary walls -revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=531277 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is for an extension of time limit to planning permission EPF/2097/08 for the 
installation of iron railings to existing brick boundary walls. (Revised application). 
  
Description of Site: 
 
A two-storey detached house on a rectangular plot. The road has a varied mix of detached styles 
of two storey houses.  
 
Relevant History 
 
Various extensions in the late 1990s and early 2000 including: 
 

Page 84



EPF/0433/01 Front and rear extensions.  Approved 
 
EPF/0669/08. Loft conversion with front dormer windows and first floor extension.  Approved 

14/05/08. 
 
EPF/1450/08 Erection of iron railings and gates to existing brick boundary wall.  Withdrawn. 
 
EPF/2097/08 Erection of iron railings to existing brick boundary walls. (Revised application).  

Approved 19/12/08.   
 
EPF/2319/08 Loft conversion with front dormer windows and first floor extension. (Amendment to 

ridge height on planning approval EPF/669/08).  Withdrawn.   
 
EPF/0369/09 Loft conversion with front dormer windows and first floor extension. (Amendment to 

ridge height on planning approval EPF/669/08). Approved 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment  
DBE1  New development 
DBE9  Loss of amenity  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
5 properties consulted and no letters in response received. 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: The Council OBJECTS to this application unless the extension of 
time limit is for one year.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to be considered are any changes in circumstances since the approval of the 
previous consent, in order that they may be given consideration.   
 
The fact that the District Council previously gave a planning permission for the development in 
2008 is a material consideration. 
 
Design and Impact on Street scene 
 
The proposal is to install iron railings above the existing brick boundary walls. The railings will sit 
above an existing 650mm high dwarf front wall and will have an overall height of 1.7m. The brick 
piers currently at a height of approx. 800mm will be extended to 2m high. Whilst there is not an 
abundance of railings along Lee Grove, there are 3 other properties along the road that benefit 
from similar railings and brick piers.  Furthermore, this type of front boundary treatment is 
increasingly commonplace in urban residential streets throughout the district as not to be 
considered out of keeping in this location. 
 
Impact on Neighbouring Amenity 
 
There will be no impact to neighbours as a result of this proposal. 
 
Comments received from the Parish Council:  
 
The Parish Council have objected to this application on the grounds that any approval should be 
given on the proviso the applicant will commence works within a maximum time period of 1 year.  

Page 85



 
Extensions to the time limit for implementing existing planning permission was brought into force 
on 1 October 2009. The reason for this measure was to make it easier to keep planning 
permissions alive during the economic downturn in order to facilitate their implementation when 
economic conditions improve. It would therefore be presumptive in the present economic climate 
to expect the works to commence within 12 months.  
 
In addition, without knowing what the applicants personal circumstances are (the applicant is not 
expected to provide any supporting evidence of this), it is not reasonable to expect works to 
commence within 12 months. It is therefore recommended permission is given for a further 3 year 
time period to give the applicant sufficient time to commence. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The Area Plan South Committee previously allowed this development under planning permission 
EPF/2097/08. There has been no material change in the physical or policy context within which the 
development should be considered therefore no new issues have arisen in the period since the 
grant of planning permission which would warrant a different assessment of the development.  
 
This application is recommended for approval with the same conditions carried forward to this 
decision. Whilst the parish Council’s comments have been taken into consideration, there is no 
justifiable reason why this conditional planning consent should be limited to a period of 1 year. 
Therefore, the recommendation is approval should be given with a time limit period of 3 years in 
order facilitate implementation of the development.   
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Ms Paula Onyia 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564103 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 86



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

2 7

12

20

4 7

4 3

26 39

5 7

5 1

36

LE E  GR OV E

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

10 
Application Number: EPF/1895/11 
Site Name: 49 Lee Grove, Chigwell, IG7 6AD 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 87



Report Item No 11 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1896/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 49 Lee Grove 

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 6AD 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mr David Shternzis  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Extension of time limit on EPF/0369/09 (Loft conversion with 
front dormer windows and first floor extension -Amendment to 
ridge height on planning approval EPF/669/08). 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=531278 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
The proposal is for an extension of time limit to planning permission EPF/0369/09 (amendment to 
ridge height on planning approval EPF/0669/08) for a previously approved loft conversion, with two 
front roof slope pitched roof dormers, and a first floor rear extension measuring 4.1m x 3.7m by 4m 
high with a gable end pitched roof.  
 
Description of Site: 
 
A two-storey detached house on a rectangular plot. The road has a varied mix of detached styles 
of two storey houses.  
 

Page 88



Relevant History 
 
Various extensions in the late 1990s and early 2000 including: 
 
EPF/0433/01 Front and rear extensions    Approved 
 
EPF/0669/08.  Loft conversion with front dormer windows and first floor extension.  Approved 
14/05/08. 
 
EPF/1450/08.   Erection of iron railings and gates to existing brick boundary wall.  Withdrawn. 
 
EPF/2097/08.  Erection of iron railings to existing brick boundary walls. (Revised application).  
Approved 19/12/08.   
 
EPF/2319/08.  Loft conversion with front dormer windows and first floor extension. (Amendment to 
ridge height on planning approval EPF/669/08).  Withdrawn.   
 
EPF/0369/09  Loft conversion with front dormer windows and first floor extension. (Amendment to 
ridge height on planning approval EPF/669/08). Approved 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Policy CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment  
Policy DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
Policy DBE10 – Design of Residential Extension  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
5 properties consulted and no letters in response received. 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL: The Council OBJECTS to this application unless the extension of 
time limit is for one year.  
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to be considered are any changes in circumstances since the approval of the 
previous consent, in order that they may be given consideration.   
 
The fact that the District Council previously gave a planning permission for the development in 
2008 and also approved the revision to this application in 2009, is a material consideration. 
 
Impact on Street Scene 

- The two front dormers are modest and appropriate to this property. The street is diverse in 
style and appearance and the dormers will cause no adverse impact to the street scene.  

- The first floor rear extension is at the less sensitive rear and side elevations and there is no 
noticeable change from the front of the property.  

- The existing 1m gap to the side boundaries will remain.  
- Therefore there is no harm caused to the character and appearance of the street scene.  

 
Design 

- The dormers are small scale and well proportioned.  
- The rear extension will result in an elevation which has two large rear gable end projections 

and a smaller central one. This has a balancing effect on the rear elevation and is 
acceptable. 

- Materials will match. 

Page 89



 
Residential Amenity 

- There will be no adverse overlooking as a result of the scheme.  
- The main neighbour which would be affected is No 47 to the east. This property has a first 

floor balcony adjacent to the flank which will be extended. Due to the orientation of the 
dwellings there will be no further significant loss of sunlight to No 47 than already occurs.  

- The new extension does not intrude into the 45º line from the patio doors of No 47 and 
there is no unacceptable loss of light caused.  

- Whilst this is a significant scheme when view from the balcony area, it is considered that it 
is just acceptable and is not excessively overbearing on the amenities of No 47.  

 
Revision in 2009 in conjunction with report for EPF/0669/08 
  
The only alteration to the approved scheme in 2008 is the increased roof height.  This would not 
give rise to a material loss of amenity to the occupiers of neighbouring properties.   
 
With regard to the impact of the proposed development on the character and appearance of the 
area, the street elevation submitted with the application indicates that the proposed roof would be 
higher than the roof of 47 Lee Grove by approximately 0.4 metres and would be marginally higher 
than that of 51 Lee Grove.  The submitted street scene does not show the change in levels across 
the site, but this is not considerable.  It is considered that, having regard to the varying property 
styles within the street, the increased roof height would not be detrimental to the character of the 
street scene.   
 
Comments received from the Parish Council:  
 
The Parish Council have objected to this application on the grounds that any approval should be 
given on the proviso the applicant will commence works within a maximum time period of 1 year.  
 
Extensions to the time limit for implementing existing planning permission was brought into force 
on 1 October 2009. The reason for this measure was in order to make it easier to keep planning 
permission alive for longer during the economic downturn to allow development to be implemented 
when economic conditions improve. It would therefore be presumptive in the present economic 
climate to expect the works to commence within 12 months.  
 
In addition, without knowing what the applicants personal circumstances are (the applicant is not 
expected to provide any supporting evidence of this), it is not reasonable to expect works to 
commence within 12 months. It is therefore recommended permission is given for a further 3 year 
time period to give the applicant sufficient time to commence. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The District Council previously allowed this development under planning permission EPF/0669/08. 
There has been no material change in the physical or policy context within which the development 
should be considered therefore no new issues have arisen in the period since the grant of planning 
permission which would warrant a different assessment of the development.  
 
This application is recommended for approval with the same conditions carried forward to this 
decision. Whilst the parish Council’s comments have been taken into consideration, there is no 
justifiable reason why this conditional planning consent should be limited to a period of 1 year. 
Therefore, the recommendation is approval should be given with a time limit period of 3 years in 
order for works to commence.   
 
 

Page 90



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Ms Paula Onyia 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564103 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
. 

Page 91



 
 
 
 

 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

2 7

12

20

4 7

4 3

26 39

5 7

5 1

36

LE E  GR OV E

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

11 
Application Number: EPF/1896/11 
Site Name: 49 Lee Grove, Chigwell, IG7 6AD 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 92


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Plans South Map
	Plans South Members Photographs 2011-12

	4 Minutes
	7 Confirmation Of Tree Preservation Order EPF/25/11 - 7 Ardmore Lane, Buckhurst Hill
	8 Non Confirmation Of Tree Preservation Order - EPF/10/11 Hazelwood, Loughton
	9 Development Control
	South 2 Nov 2011


